NOTE BOOK OF A SURREY JUSTICE.
By GRANVILLE LEVESON-GOWER, Esq, F.S.A.

Tue following notes are from a MS. book m the Bod-
leian Library Oxford, (Rawlinson MS. C. 642), entitled,
Note Doolk of a Surrey Justice. It is a small 12mo, written
m a very cramped and difficult hand, and has been
very accurately transeribed by Mr. W. H. Allnutt, of the
Bodleian. The Surrey Justice was Bostock Fuller, Iisq.,
of Tandridge Court, as appears by internal evidence.
At page 176, James Knolden, of Tandridge, is cited
‘“coram me B. ff.” (i.c., Bostock Fuller); at page 182,
Edward Rogers is ordered to appear ¢ before me at
Tandridge Court;” at page 191, a case 1s heard on 5 Feb.
1611, ¢ Coram Tho. Hoskyns milite et ¢ Bostoke ffuller’
arm.;” and on the next page, on 1 Mar. 1611, 1t is said
‘“Richard Kemsall hathe this dayc comen before me,
Bostock ftuller esquire one of the Justices of the Peace
of this Countye;” on page 207, under date March 1614
and 1615, his signature occurs, of which I have given
a fac-simile; and on pages 226 and 227, under dates
of 5 June 1620 and 29 June 1622, his name occurs
‘“ beforec me DBostok ffuller esq™” Of his family
I give the following account. Iis uncle, Richard
Bostock, Esq., levied a Fine of the Manor of Tand-
ridge, in Hilary Term, 1554; on 2nd October, 1576, he
purchased of John Rede the site and lands of Tand-
ridge Priory, the Rectory and Viearage, the Priory
Manor, and the Warren or Park of Tandridge, containing
273 acres. He resided at Tandridge Court, was a Justice
of the Peace for Surrey, and the MS. book, from which
these notes are taken, was an old book of his, as will be
seen at pages 228-232, where there is an Assessment
for Tandridge, dated 1600, to which his signature is
appended, as also to a document of the 19th May in that
year. lle represented Blechingley in Parliament in 15,
27, and 31 Eliz., and was Sheriff of Surrey and Sussex in
1586. On 7th February, 1603, he enfeoffed Sir Edward
Dyer, Sir Matthew Browne, Sir Thomas Gresham, Kts,
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and Edward Carleton, Esq., of the Manor of Tandridge,
and all his lands there, to the use of himself for life, and
after his death to the use of Bostock Iuller, with re-
mainder to Edward Bostock Ifuller, son and heir of the
said Bostock Fuller. 1IMis Will is dated 17th April, 1605,
and was proved on 4th April, 1606. e describes him-
self as Richard Bostocke, of Tandridge, Esq., “sick in
body,”—mentions his wife Jane—appoints Bostock Fuller
sole Exccutor—recites indenture of 1603, by which he
had conveyed to him all his lands, &e., he to find meat,
drink, and other reasonable attendance to him and his
wife during their lives, bequeaths to John Eaton,
Minister, all his Divinity Books except the ¢ booke of
Martirs;” to “Emme ——, for her attendance and pains
that she hath and shall perform unto me duringe my
sicknes, 20 nobles.”

In Vineent's Clheshire, College of Arms, 120, p. 190, is a Pedigree
of Bostoek. The arms arc: Sable, & fess couped argent. It begins
with Osmere de Bostock, Kt., living A° 1066, and, omitting the early
descents there given, it runs thus:—

Sir Ralphe Bostock, = [Isabel, d. & h. to Wm.
living 7 Hen. IV. Lawton.]

l .
Sir Adam DBostoek, = Elizabeth, d. & 1. to
slain at Blox- Richard Venables, Baron
heath, 1459. of Kinderton, sister & heir
to Hugh.

Nicholas Bostock. 2nd son, = Kathariue, d. & coh. to
of Moberley, Cheshire. ! Sir William Moberley, Kt.

Thomas Bostock, ==
2nd son

|
Randall Bostock = Alice, d. to
of Moberley ‘ . ... Mottram.

Roger Bo:tock = Felice, d. to John Heaton
| [of Blechingleigh].

[ f
1. Ione B.,, 2. Katherine B., 8. Margarct B., Richard Bostock = Katherin, d. of

wife of wife of Richard wife of Richard of Taundridgc, . ... Field.
Wm. Fulwer. Blunt. J. T, for Surrey.
Knight. (Lhe mother of

Bostock Fuller
of Tandridge.)
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Bostock Fuller, the writer of these notes, was born at
Horsted Parva, 4th November, 1566, and married Frances,
daunghter of Erasmus Gainsford, of Crowhurst, Iisq.,
who swvived him, and proved his Will. He repre-
sented Blechingley in Parliament in the last year of
Queen Elizabeth’s reign. Ilis mother was Katherine,
eldest sister of Ricliard Bostock. The Inqmsltlon
taken at Southwark upon his death, 14th February,
1627 (Chancery Inquis. p.m., 3 Car. I, 3 Pt. 122),
states that he was seized of the site of the Priory of
Tandridge and of the Rectory; that by Deed, dated
12th June, 1625, between him, his wife Frances, lis
eldest son, Edward Bostock IFuller, Thomas Gilbourne,
son and heir of Sir Nicholas Gilbourne, Kt., and others,
in consideration of a marriage between his son Edward
and Mary Gilbowrne, one of the daughters of Sir
Nicholas, he settled the manor upon his son; that the
marriage was solemnized on 1lst August followmo' that
his death took place at Tandridge on 10th Mfuch 1690,
and that his son Francis® was then 21 years old and
upwards. IHis Will nuncupative is in the Prerogative
Office (Hele 37). ¢ Memorandum that Bostock Fuller,
Esq., late of Tandridge, died 11 March, 1625, or ncre
thereupon to some few days, and next before his
death being put in mind to make or declare his
Will he did by word of mouth make his testament
nuncupative as followeth:—¢All that I have and all
the blessings that I have in the world I leave to
my eldest son Edward Bostock Iuller, and to his
disposition,” and said that none need distrust him, for
he was assured he would deal well with the rest of
his children, w® words uttered in presence of Ralph
Rand® Clarke, Minister of Oxted, Irances IFuller his

! Manning, Iist. of Swrr., Vol. II, 374, states incorrectly that he
died in 1633.

2 He was a younger son.

3 Rector of Gatton from 1599—1615. Instituted to the Rectory of
Oxted, 3rd October, 1615. The mounment to him in Oxted Church
describes him as “Theologo Iatros Concionator Orthodoxus, Taber-
naenlum deposuit, 19 Feb. 1648.”

L2
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wife, Jane Dyer,) Ruth Iuller, I'rancis Fuller, and
Ot]l(‘l\ he being then of very pelfe(,t mind and memorie.
By virtue of & Commission’ to me, Phinchas Darknoll,?

and others, 27 March, 1626. On 29 March commission
to Edward Bostock Fuller to administer.” It will be
noticed that the last entry in the Nole DBook is dated
29th June, 1622, so that possibly, for the last two years
of his life, he was unable from ill-health to discharge
his magisterial duties. The Parish Registers of Tand-
ridge only date from the year 1695, so that nothing
is to be gleaned from them. There was in the church,
when  Manning wrote, a monument to Dorothy,
daughter of Kdward Bostock Iuller, Esq., and wife
of Anthony Parsons, of the county of Oxford, Iisq.
She died 17th June, 1670, aged 47. The Will of
Edward Bostock IFuller is among the Surrey Arch-
deaconry Wills (F‘umel 422). 26 M’Ly 1637. Edward
Bostock Fuller, of T andudne, sick 1n body—to Mary
Fuller, my most beloved and good wife, during her
life, my mansion house called Tandrdge Coult SO
long as she continues my widow — mentions SONS,
John, TFrancis, and Edward; daughters, Dorithie and
Elizabeth — makes his son John Ilxecutor. Proved
8th September, 1637, by Mary Fuller, the relict; John,
the son, being under age. The last of the Fuller
family who possessed Tandridge was Irancis Bostock
Tfuller, Sergeant-at-Law, to whom there is a monument
m the Church. Ile died 8th I'ebrnary, 1707, in the
74th year of his age, and Mary lus w 1f0, (hunhter of
Auditor Tooke, 13th June, 1707, m the 7 Tth year of
Ler age. Upon his death, the cstate descendcd to his
dauwhtels, and was shortly afterwards sold to the Clay-

ton family.

1 Daughter of Dostock Tuller. At page 3, he speaks of his son
“ Deyer.” Sir Edmund Dyer, It., one of Mr. Bostock’s trustees,
1603, was the latter’s father. She was married to Edward Dyer,
son and heir of Sir Edward Dyer, Kt., at ‘Tandridge Court, on 7th July,
1608.

2 Rector of Titsey. IHe was Rector in 1619, aud was buried at
Titsey, 1st October, 1662,
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In Vinceut’s Swrrey, 1623, College of Arms, C 2, p. 79, is a
Pedigree of Fulwer. A shield with 10 guarterings.}!
1. Ar,, 3 burs and a eanton gu. [Fulwer or Fuller].
2. Ar, on a cross gu., 5 lozenges vair [Freville].  (In the Pedigree,
John Fulwer is said to have married the d. & h. of Burdvaile.)

3. Sa., a fess couped ar. [Bostock].

4. Az., 6 garbs or, 3, 2, 1 [ Hugh Keveliock, Earl of Chester].

5. Az., semée of trefoils or, a lion ramp. ar. [7

6. Az., 3 garbs or [Randolph Blundeville, Earl of Chester].

7. Ar., an orle between 8 martlets sa. [ Winnington].

8. Or, on a fess az. 8 garbs of the field [ Vernon].

9. Sa,, o ehevron between 3 bulls’ heads cabossed ar. [? Bulkeley,

of Bulkeley, Co. Chester].
10. Az, 2 bars ar. [ Venables].
Crest out of a ducal eoronet gu., a lion’s head ar. charged with a
pellet.

John Fulwer = filia et hares
de Uckfield, Burdvaile.
Suss,

Walterns Fulwer — Lliz,, filia

de Uckfield, Robt! Darkenhall
Arm,, fil. ¢t de Penselnrst, in Kent.
heer.

Riehardus Fulwer, — Kath., fil. ct coh.
de Uekfield. Rogeri Bostoek de
Arm,, fil. ¢t heer. Moberley, Co. Cestr.

|

Gracia, Bostoek Fnller,—= I'rancisca. Margareta, uxor
nxor Joh. J.I., 1623. Hen. Skipwith
Wood de London, Capetanei.

Med. Doctoris.

|

{

Jana, uxor Tutha. Ld. Bostock Ric, Bostock Ursula, Katlerina, usor
Edwardi | Fuller, Fuller, fil. 2, uxor Fran, Joh. Bert de
Dyer de —TFrancisca. wet. 21,1623, Pollaxd de Ipswich, Suff.
Weston, Nuvenham
Co. Somer- '——Elizabetha. Courtuey,
set. Co. Oxon,

05// k<& By

1 For these quarterings, see Visitation of Cheshire, Iarl. Soc
Publ., 1882; Pedigree of Bostock.



166 NOTE BOOK O A

At the end of the book is the following very detailed account of
the [umily of Fuller, entitled : “ILxemplar cujusdam Seripti Chartacei
penes Idw, Bostock Fuller.”

John F. de Uckfield = Mariam fil. Johis Byrdevile, Arm., et habuit
Joh., qui obiit sine prole legitima.

Walterum 2 fil.— Mariam fil. = Joh. Mannser, gen. — Eliz. = Tho.
Ellys.  Iste Johes. Pater (sicut informatus sum) venit cum Morton
Arch. Cant,, in Suss., eujus Register et Senescallus fuit.

Johes. fil. hab. nothum enjus posteritas in Kane.

Walt. = Eliz. fil. Rob® Darkenhall de Penshurst, Arm., habuit Ric. et
Joh. siue prole. Eliz. s.p. Marg. nupt. Will Fenner, s.p. Et ... nupt. Moyle.

Ric. I, il Walt. duxit Kat. fil. Rogeri Boxtock, gen., et sor. et h.
Rici. Bostock de Tanridge, Arn., et habuit Bostock Fuller, sol.
Grac. = Johi. Wood, M.D.  Marg. = Edmundo Baunaster, gen., duci
in bello, unde Peregrin Bannaster et Kdtelill a, et postea nupta fuit
Ienr. Skipwith duei quoque et fil. Rici. S. de Ormesby, Co. Line., Mil.,
unde Riens., Henr., Will, Maria, Anna, ]udw ardus, Margareta et B ng]tm.

Bostock Fuller, fil. Rici. F., gen,, et Kat. fil. Ric. Bo~t0d\ en., natus
in domo Rectorali de Horsted Parva, Co. Suss., A.D. 1566, die Luna,
4 Nov., A RR. Eliz. 8, ITord 12° min. cirea 30 diei.

Susceptores, Rietis Bostocke de Tandridge, in Surr., Ar., Avunenlus cjus.

Johes. Delves de Croxted, in Framfield, Suss., gen.,
patruelis.
Eliza Moore, ux. Tho. More, gen., cognat.

Irancizea Gayuesforde, filia Lirasmi G. fil. Joh. G. de Crowhurst,
mil.,, nata in Crowhurst Place, in Swrr., 27 Aug., viz., die Martis,
Ao D. 1568, A° RR. Eliz. 11°, uxor. Bos. F. prad.

Suseeptores, Georgins Gaynesforde, gen., Patruelis.

I\atemm uxor Riet. ])o&m(l\e. Arm.
.« . .. uxor Egidii Crow de Brasted, Kane., Gen.

Nupti fuerunt apud Crowhurst Place, A° D. 1590, Reg. Eliz. 32,
viz., dic Merenrii, 29° Jul.

SOBOLES.

Juana F., nata apud Crowhurst Place, die Lunee, 19 Jun., A° 1592,
R. Eliz. 34, Hora Sep. p meridicm.

Susceptores, Arthurns Gay de Meptim, Lance., gen., Cogii.

Jana Bostocke, uxor Rici. Bostocke, Ann., Ava.
Katerina, nxor Rici. Fuller, gen., Ava.

Ursnla F., nata ibidem die Ven., 12 die Oct., Hora 4 p.m., A° D.
1593, R Eliz, 34.

Susceptores, Egidiuz Crowe de Brasted, Gen.

Ursula Whitton, gen., Vid. Amita ex Ava.
Johamma. ux. Will. Gaynesford de Lingfield, Mil.

Edvardus B. IF., nat. in Tandridge Court die Solis 30 Mart. hora prima
pnr, A.D. 1595, R. Eliz. 37,

Susceptores, Idwardus Dyer Miles,

Ricus Bostock, Arm., Avus ¢t Avunculus.
Jang Bostocke, nxor Rici praed. Ava.

He dyed the 18 of Ap. fol., being Good Friday in y* morning: he

Iyeth in Tandridge Chancell.
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Ruth F., nata ibidem die Jovis, 25th Nov., A.D. 1596, R. Eliz. 39.
Hora 8 antemerid.

Suseeptores, Johes. Gaynesford de Crowhurst, geu., Avunculus.

Ruth, uxor Will Holton.

Jana, uxor Andr. Bassano, gen., cognat.
TFrancisca IY., in erepusculo mane nata, 28 Jan. A° 1598, 40 Eliz. R.
Suseeptores, Erasmus Gaynesforde, Avunculus.

Jana Bostock.  Ava.
Katerina F., nata ibidem 7 die Ang., hora 12, A.D. 1599, R. Eliz. 41.
Susceptores, Andreas Bassano, gen.

Jana Bostock, Ava,

Katerina Fuller, Ava.
Jocosa F., nata ibidem 30 Mareii, Ilora 6 p.m., A.D. 1601, R. Eliz. 43.
Susceptores, Edwardus Dyer, Jun®. gen.

Jana Bostock, Ava,

Johanna, ux. Johix. Gay, gen.

Mortua est 31 d. ejusdem Mart., Hora 5 p.m.

Fdwardus Bostock Fuller secundus, natns in Tandridge Court 26 die
Maii die Mercurii in septimana Pentecost. Hora 6 et 45 min. p.m.,
A° D. 1602, et R. Eliz. 44

Susceptores, Edwardus Dyer, mil.

Ricus. Bostock, Ar., Avus et Avunculus.
Jana Bostock, nxor ejusdem Riei., Ava.

Ricardns B. F., natus in Tan. Ct 23 die Junii, die Jovis, hora 7 et
quart., preeterit in Aurora A° D. 1603 ct Regni R. Juc. 1°, et mortuus
est primo die, viz., 24 die ejusdem mensis, hora 5 Aurora. Sep. est in
Cancell. Eccl. de Tan.

Susceptores, Rictis. B., Arm., Avns et Avunculus.

Erasmus Gay, gen. et Avunculus,
Jana Bostock, Ava, uxor ejusdem Rici.

Ricard. B. F. secund., nat. in Tan. C* die Mercurii, 3 die Oct., hora 72,
ct parum preeterit in pomerid., A° D. 1604, et R. Jac. 2°.

Susceptores, Ricus B., Arm., Avus et Avune.

Henr. Skipwith, Capitancus Patruus,
Jana B., Ava, uxor ejusdem Riei.

Die Sabb. 12 Jul. A° D. 1606 ct 4% Jac. alia filia nata fuit parent.
preed. sed vix vixit ad partum.

Lliza F., nata in Tan. Ct die Mer. 16 Mart., hora 7 Aurora, A.D.
1607, A° 5 Jac.

Egrotavit valde et baptizat. erat 18 die ejuxdem mensis.

Susceptores, Thomas Forder, gen., consanguineus.

Jana, uxor And. Bassano, gen., consang.
Jana Fuller, soror ejus senior.

Jana Fuller, fil. primogenita preed. B. et Fran., nupta fuit Edwardo
Dyer, Arm., heredi Edwardi Dyer, mil, apud Tandridge Court,
7 July, 1608.

Dorothea F., nata in Tan. C*3 die Novemb. 1626, hora 1* pomeridiana.

Susceptores, Johes., Evelyn, Arm.

Dorothea Capell, Lady.
Francisca IFuller, Ava.
Examinat. p. E. B. Fuller, 7 Sep. 1687.
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The following Peligree iz from Bysshe’s Visitation of Surrey, 1662,
Coll. of Arms, D 13, p. 21. It has a shield with 10 quarterings as
the former.

Ychard Falwer =— Katherine, da. & coheir of

of Uckfield, Richard Bostocke of Moberley,
Co. Suss, Co. Chest., Arm.
Arm.

Bostock Fulwer — Irances, d. of Lirasmus
of Taudridge Gainsford of Crowhurst.
Conrt, in
Com. Surr.,
Ar, J.1.

Edward Bostock Fuller. == Mary, d. of Sir Nich.
s. & b, of Tandridge Gilborne of Charing,
Court, Ar. Co. Nent, Int-

\
Dorothy Francis Fulwer, = Mary, d. of James Edward

Fulwer, s. & h.. of Tooke of Iertford, Fulwer.
Tandridge Ar.

Conrt, Ar.

Irancis. Edward, s. & h. Mary. Elizabeth. Aune.

oo ol

In this Isitation, at the end, after the Index, are the following MS.
notes :— ]

Mary, wife of Francis Fuller. was dar of James Tooke, of TLondon, Isq.,
Auditor of Ct of Wards.

Edward, s. & h. of Francis F. & M. F.= a danghter of Waller, s. of Keyt
Waller, of Doctors’ Comions, London, web Ed. dyed ye midle of April, 1690, &
his wife dyed about 10 weeks before in childbed and left iss. a danr. & a son.

Mary, d. of above = Tho. Costin (Cansten), of Oxted.

The said Francis was called to degree of Serjeant-at-Law A° 1087, 3 Jac. 2.

The s? Francis had also one d* more, called Letice, born sinee this visitation.

These notes appear to me to be of very great interest;
they throw considerable light upon the duties and
practice of a Justice of the Peace in the earlier part
of the seventeenth century; and while they differ in
some respeets from those of the present day, there is a
great similarity both in the cases themselves and in the
manner of dealing with them. The office of a Justice
of the Peace—at any rate, of one so active as Mr. Fuller
—was no sinecure; 1t involved constant travelling,
doubtless in those days on horseback. It does not
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appear that there was any fixed day of mecting in
Petty Sessions. Though, gencrally speaking, the work
is arranged under months, the greater part of the
business scems to have been transacted either at his
own house or at those of his brother Justices. It
is curious that there is no mention throughout of cither
Assizes or Quarter Sessions at Guilford. It may be that
owing to the distance le did not attend them; at any
rate, the Summer Assize was not as now, alternately, at
Guilford and Croydon, but at Kingston, because at page 2
we find, 1608, June 22, “I rode to Kingston Assyses,
and there I stayed 23™ and 24™ dayes;” and again at
page 11, <1610, Julye the 3%, I rode towards Kingstons
assyses, and returned the 5.7 In 1612-13 we read,
“The 3'of Marche I rode to th'assises in Sowthewarke,
which began the 4" of Marche.” Of Quarter Sessions
we get the following notices.  The Spring Sessions were
held at Reigate, a custom which continued uutil they
were removed of late years to Newington. DPage 1,
€ 1608, 5™ Aprill, I rode to Reygate Sessions.” <1612-13,
I rode to Reygate to the quarter Sessions the 12 of
April.” 1614, Maye, I rode to Reygate Sessions the
3" and 4™ dayes.” The Epiphany Quarter Sessions at
this time were held at Croydon. The earliest entry on
the County Records is of a Session there on 10 Jan. 1659,
and from that time they were held continuously until
1740, the Epiphany Session on 15 Jan. of that year being
the last that was held at Croydon. Page 180, ‘1608,
the 10" daye of Januarye I rode to the quarter Sessions
at Croydon.” They are mentioned again as being held
there on page 189, and on pages 194, 199, 200, 203, 205,
209, and 210, ois. The Midsummer Sessions seem to
have been held at Kingston, or were so, at any rate, in
1611. At page 187, ¢ Ultimo die Junii,” Agnes Bromefeld
15 ordered to appear at the next general quarter Sessions
“to be holden for this Countye at Kingston vppon
Thames;” and at page 198, under May 24, 1613, they

1 From a passage at page 224, dated 2 Aug. 1619, it would appear as
if the Michaelmas Sessions of that year were to e held at Kingston.
No information as to these Kingston Sessions is to be got from the
County Records.
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arc again mentioned.  Judging from what took place at
Reigate, there does not appear to have been any regular
Chairman. On 28th April, 1609, Mr. Fuller relates that
none of them eame prepared to give the charge, but that
ultimately he gave an exhortation ¢ to the Juryes of
betwene a quarter and halfe an houre, and then caused
the ‘Clarke of the peace’ to reade the lawes.” This is
the only oceasion on which he alludes to that official.
There 1s more than one mention of the Petty Sessions
at Godstone, e.g., 1608, Ap. 29" I was at Godstone
at a meetinge for the acecounte of the poore,” page 175 ;
1615, “1 was at Godstone the 19" daye at a meeting
for alchouses and Rogues ;™ and September in the same
yvear, “I rode to Godstone' to that Sessions.” Sessions
were held at other places: e. g., 1608, April 30, I was at
Blechingleye at a meeting for the alchousekepers;” and
again, 1613, August, “I rode to Lingficld to a Sessions
for a Ryott.”  The sitting was sometimes on a Sunday,
e.g., page 199: 1613, 20 June, ““ The condicon to appeare
before me at Tandrydge on Sondaye next, being the
20" of this June.” Amidst the calls of business, dinner
was not forgotten.  Ou 29th May, 1608, he dines with
Myr. Evelyn previous to hearing a case, and still more ex-
traordinary a circumstance, 1618, Sept. 21, the Justices
fine some parties £4, and take £1 out of the fine to pro-
vide themsclves with a dinner.  Ifines in the present day
are never, I fear, devoted to such pious uses, though
I think I read not long ago of some  London Board
of Guardians making themselves merry at the ex-
pense of the ratepayers.  Corporal punishment was a
favourite method of dealing with cases i those days.

1 Petty Sessions were held at Godstone, we know, as far back as
1540. At a Council held at Greenwich, 13 Ap., 32 Hen. VIII, it
was found that “certain evil disposed persons unknowen had burned in
the Countye of Surrey a frame of tyvmbre belonging to Sir John
Gressam, of London, Kt.,” and a letter was addressed to Justice
Willonghby aud certain other Justices, gentlemen dwelling in the sayd
Countye, to enquire at the Sessions at Godstone upon the Tuesday in
Buaster week, and to examiuce all such persons as they should think
suxpicious of the said fact, and in easc they had knowledge of the same
to commit them to ward, and to certify the Counueil of their pro-
ceeding in that behalf,  (Nicholas, Proccedings of the Privy Council,
Yol. VII, 174.)
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On page 175, four rogues—two men and two women—
are taken for duck stealing ; ““the 8" daye I went to Mr.
Evelyns, and there we sawe them whipped.” A vagrant
who could not account for himself had the same punish-
ment meted out to him. Page 178, ¢ 3 June, 1608,
Richard Jenkyns and Susan his wyfe were taken va-
grant here, and bycause he knewe not certeynely where
he was borne I caused them to be whypt.” Tage 180,
“John Berrye, whom I seunt to the gaole for stealing
Lenns, was arrayned and whipt.”  Page 198, 4+ June,
Amias Gullocke, who was brought up for stealing a
petycote, seems to have been somewhat hardly dealt
with ; for although the party would not accuse him, and
le said he bought it, he was whipped all the same, and
sent back to his birthplace. Burning in the hand was
also practised.! DPage 179, ¢ Burges, whom Mr. Evelyn
and I bailed, was bwrnt i the hand.” A less terrible,
but at the same time, an ignominious punishmment was
that of putting an offender in the stocks, or, as it is
cupliemistically termed, “laying him by the heels.”
Page 214. ¢ They broughte Toller, with a goose, which
le said he stole from Rose Harling. I charged the con-
stable to lay him by the heels all night.”™  ‘The sequel
was, that he brake the stocks and ran away. These
nmethods were doubtless very effectual, but, if adopted
now, would probably form the subject of a question in
the House of Commons, and be followed up by a missive
from the Home Secretary.

Human nature is the same in all ages, and the

. . . . O
offences in this Diary might read as a record of the

1 This continued to be practised until comparatively recent times.
There are constant cntries in the Ilistorical Register, of felons being
punished in this way. In December, 1727, William Marchant, being
found guilty at the Sessions at the Oll Bailey, of manslaughter, was
“burnt in the hand.”

2 It is related in Nugae Antiquee, how a Sheriff of Somerset made
answer to a Judge, who complained of the danger of travelling in the
West, owing to the badness of the roads : “In good soothe, Sir, it he
but fair playe that yon, who so often make others feare for their neckes,
should in some sorte beginne to thinke of saving your owne.””  This
made the Judge angry, and he replied, “ Good Maister Sheriffe, leave
alone my necke, and looke to your owne heeles, for you may one day be
laide Ly them.”
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present time. Pulling hedges, page 174, for which the
offender was adjudged to do two days’ work for the
man whose property he had damaged; and page 202,
hedge breaking ; and page 206, pulling hedges and steal-
mg wood. lorse stealing, pages 182 and 219, for which
the offender is sent to gaol.  Drunkenness, page 183, for
which a voluntary payment of 5° was accepted ; and on
4 Nov. 1614, page 204, Thomas Dunstane is sent to the
house of correction, taken at Bletchingley fair drunk
and quarreling.  Stealing conies, hunting and killing
them in enclosed ground, pages 179, 180, 190, 195,
201, Uis, seem to have been common offences, but
were not dealt with in Petty Sessions, but sent for
trial at the Quarter Sessions. Witcheraft! has disappeared
before the advances of cducation, but on 5 Feb. 1611,
page 191, Jane Roberts, of Reigate, spinster, was sum-
moned to answer to the suspicion of committing divers
witcherafts, on the accusation of Peter Woodstock. Brawl-
ing in church is charged against Allingham, of Nutfield,
carpenter, page 192. A case of receivingstolen goods occurs
at page 193. An assault and binding over to keep the
peace, id.  Detaining possession of a house, id.  Robbery
by and running away of an apprentice, /. Binding
apprentices, page 196. A dog that is suspected of killing
sheep 1s sent for and hanged, page 201. Afirst convietion
for hedge pulling is dealt with, with a mitigated fine of 27,
and time allowed to pay itin, page 206. Richard Plawe,
of Blechingley, is committed to the Quarter Sessions for
abusing a constable in the exccution of his duty,and bound
overin £10 to appear and to keep the peace, page 210. In
the case of William Flint, for a like offence, he is bound
in £20 and two sureties in £10 cach, page 216; stealing
ferrets, page 217 ; ferreting, page 178, Burglary is men-
tioned by that name, pages 219 and 222, and a hill of
indictment is preferred. The Justices have meetings

1 During the early part of the reign of James I, several persons were
exceuted for witcheraft. It has been said that as many as 300 were
exccuted annually, but this is probably an exaggerated statement. The
Statute of 1562 made witeheraft a erime of the highest magnitude, and
a still more severe enactment was passed in 1604,
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for the accounts of the poor, page 175 ; for the accounts
of the overscers, page 184; for alchouses, pages 174,
208; for swearing constables and headboroughs, pages
191, 209, 210, 216, 217. We should consider it a
serious interference with the liberty of the subject if
we had to obtain a Justice’s license to cnable us to
travel. At page 196, “Mem. the 18 Jan. 1612, I sct
my hand and seal to a license for Mr. Copley to travel
to London and Middlesex for 6 months;” and again at
page 211, 29 Oct. 1615, ““I sett my hande to a lycense
for Mr. Copley to travayle about his business for 6
months,” and again another on 5 May 1616.! There is
frequent mention of the Musters at Croydon, which
Mz, Bostock Fuller seems to have attended, page 196,
bis ; page 208, bis.

I have attempted in this Preface to give a digest of
the principal cases, and the methods of dealing with
them. It is a matter of regret that other Justices before
and since did not keep diaries of a similar kind ; or, at
any rate, that they have not come down to us. They
would have been full of interest, and would have taught
us a good deal about magisterial proceedings of former
times. There was apparently no clerk at a Justice's
clbow in those days; he had to know the law, and to
administer it to the best of his ability. It is curious to
speculate what legal books he possessed. Bracton de
Legibus Angliee, 1569, Justice of Peace, 1559, and Selden’s
Commentaries, 1685, may have been nearly all his stock.
Ife acted, no doubt, under a due sense of responsibility;
but, at the same time, if he exceeded his authority, he
was not likely to be taken to task, and, at any rate,
there was no cheap press to circulate sensational para-
graphs under the heading of ¢ Justices’ Justice.”

! In Manning and Bray’s Swrrey, Vol. IT, 239, it is stated that, in
Feb. 1599, the Queen presented to the living of Gatton, in consequence
of Mr. Copley having gone beyond the seas and not returned according
to the Statnte. The necessity for this license was doubtless in con-
sequence of the Copley family being Papists. DBy the Statute 35 Eliz.,
c. 2, convicted ¢ Recusants’ were “to repaire to their own houses and
not remove above five miles ” without leave from two justices of the
peace, and with the assent, in writing, of the bishop or lord licutenant
or a deputy licutenant.
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RAWL. MS. C. 642 IN THE BODLETAN
LIBRARY.

Apryll 1608.

Mr. Engler & 2¢ die, Mr. Evelyn! and Iwent to Sir Tho. Hoskyns!
Allen, about the matter betwene Mr., Engler & Allen, but

Allen came not.

Knolden. The 34 of Aprill T ended the matter betwene Pycknett &

Jo: Kuolden for which I had scent my warrant: viz.
IKnolden was to doe twoo dayves worke for Pycknett & never e him-
selfe nor his wyfe or servants to poll his hedges &e.

Warr. versus The 4% daye I went to Mr. Evelvns and then we
Ed:Dorrant.  seut a warrant against Edward Dorrant for the peace

againgt Adam Rumnye and another against wydowe
Stenner and her sonne to appeare at the Sessions for finding faulte
with the assesment for the maymed soldiers and the hospytalls.?

The 5% of Aprill I rode to Reygate sessions and retnrned at nighte
and rode againe the nexte daye & then the Sessions ended. I then pntt
in the Reeognizance against Roberte Ewyns & he was fiyned vj* viijd,
then the matterof Allingham was hearde & ended. Then yt was agreed
that we sholde meete aboute alchouses satterdaye the last of Aprill at
Blechinglye.

1 John Evelyn, Isq., of Godstone, afterwards Sir John Evelyn.
Ob. 1617.  Sir Thomas Ioskyns, of Barrow Green, Oxted, knighted
at Windsor, 1605. Ob. 1615, Ili= mother was Anue, danghter of
Thomas Iingler, of Lingficld.

2 Sce an Assessment for this purpose, p. 228,
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4 Rogues The 7 I rode with Mr. Evelyn to Sir W. Gaynsfords!
whypped. whoe was sveke, to have his testymonye versus George

Tumer & that daye we tooke iiij Rogues 2 men & ij
women on Blyundlye heathe & had them to Godstone they had stolen
ij dnckes & acensed cche other of other ffacts, & the 8™ daye I went
to Mr. Evelyns & there we sawe them whipped & made them pasports
to Devonshire and Somersetshire.

2 Rognes The 15 daye I cansed to? stonte Rognes called Marye
whipped. Rendoll a wydow, & Aune Marks a wyfe to be whipped

at Tanrydg & sent to Rawlyns in Essex.

The 29" T was at Godstone at a meeting for the acconute of the
poore.

The 30% T was at Blechinglye at a meeting for the alehonsckepers
where they first paid theire Rent to the king and were allowed.

Maye 1608.

The 3% daye I sent my warrant for Tye of Lymsfeld for putting
awaye . ... Monnyard his servant daunghter of .. .. Wards wyfe of
Lymsfeld. Yt was ordered the 4 daye that Warde shoulde goe to
Tye & yf they agree the matter is ended, yf not they are to come
togyther hefore vs on Whytsontuysdaye & Tye to kepe lier vutyll then,
which was ended by themselves.

The . ... daye Mr. Evelyn & I sent eur warrant to take Robert
Butcher & to carye him to the gaole for snspicion of the deathe of
Adams.

The 8% daye Mr. Evelyn & I sent our warrant (which I made) to
the Churchwardens & ouerseers of Crowhnrst to receave John Allen
48 @ pore persoim.

The 17t of Maye we had a meeting at Godstone to perfeet the
accounts of the poore.

b Sir William Gayunsford, of Blockficld and Ford. Lingficld, knighted
at Whitehall, 23rd July, 1603. Buricd at Lingfield, 1608 ; so that he
must have been at this time at the point of death,

* Two,
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The 21 daye Mr. Evelyn & T made a warrant to eall the wytnesses
before vs to examyne them vppon the deathe of Adams.

The 22t T sent a warrant to Lyngfeld to take Edward Pocknell
uppon suspieion of stealing Knoldens lambes & on the morrowe morn-
ine he was bronghte before me & being examined confessed the faete
& haning twoe other lambes skyns founde in his house verye sus-
preiouslye T made a mittimus to sende him to the Gaole by the
Constable of Lyngfeld he is also accused for a drnnkard &e.

Memorandum quod 23° die Maij Anno regni domini nostri Jacobi
Dei gratia Anglize ffrancize et ITiherniwe rex fidei defensor &e. 6° et
Scotite 42 Jacobus Knolden de Tanrydg in Com. priedict. laborarius
personaliter coram me B. .1 vno Justiciariorum domini regis ad pacem
&e. apnd Tanrydg recognovit se debere eidem domino Regi x! bone et
legalis monete Anglie de bonis et eattallis terrix et tenementix suis fieri
et levari ad opus dieti domini regis heredum ct successorum suorum si
defecerit in condicione snbzequente.

The Condition of this Recognysaunee is suche That whereas one
Edwarde Pocknell of Lingfeld hoopemaker was this daye bronglte
Lefore me and was by the abovebounden James Knolden eharged with
the felonions taking of a lambe of his the sayde J: K : & therevppon
was sent to the Gaole of the said countye by the sayde Justyee yf
therefore hie the sayde J : K: shall & wyll at the nexte general gaole
deliverye to Le holden in the sayd countye preferr er eause to be pre-
ferred anc byll of endytement of the sayd felonye against the said E: P:
and shall & wyll then alsoe give evydence there concerning the same
as well to the Jurors that shall then engnyre of the sayde ffelonye as
alzo to them that shall passe vppon the tryall of the sayd I. P.  That
then this Recognizance to e voyde or else to remayne in his foree &
vertue.

Georgius ITowden de Lingfeld in Com. predict. &e.
I tooke y° Tenetwr domino Regi in x! 24 Maii sub simili con-
examinations  ditione for an ewe & a buceke.
of these ij
cases that Johanmes Lambe of Lingfeld tenetur domino Regi
daye there. in x! codem dic sub simili conditione for one
lambe.

I B. I, i.c., Bostock Fuller,
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This 29 of Maye afternoone I was at Sir Tho. Hoskyns where we
mett Sir Thomas Gresham! Mr. Evelyn & Mr. Hayward but I went
first to Mr. Evelyns where I dyned & Mr. Hayward, where we should
have examined the matter councerning Dennys for the suspition of
Adams hix deathe, but they were not at home. But at Sir Tho.
Hoskyns we ended the matter for Gylberts wydowe viz. That the
wydowe shoulde deliner for the iiij* children now not put forthe viijt
that iz for eche xI* into the hands of the onerseers of Crowhurst & that
they should paye her therefore after the common rate =oe long as =he
kept the chyldren & soe =oon as any childe was putt forthe they shoulde
deliner the xI* or soe muche thereof as shonlde be requyred & the rest
to ruune on to the vse of that childe & soe forthe & they to give
zecurytye to the parishe whither she ix to goe for theire dyxcharge &e.

Maye 1608.

That daye the complaynt which was made to me the daye before by
Myles & his wyfe against M Covert was commytted to Mr. Evelyn
viz, for an assault.

The 25% daye William Renfeld alias Burrell of Heaner in Kent was
sent to me by Sir Thomas Gresham whoe received him by Mr. Potters
warrant owte of Kente & T examined him for stealing a sheepe & a
lambe of George Howdens with Ed. Pocknell which he confessed & for
another lambe of John Lambs which did not directlve but in effect
confess & I sent him to the gaole by the officer of Lymsfeld which

broughte him.

Memorandum to zeude for George Iowden & Johu Lambe to be
bounde to give evydence. Sir Tho: Gresham bonunde them.

The 26 of Maye . .. Daye of Blechinglye complayned to me of an
aszanlte made by Richard Plant being drouk vppon ... ... his mayde
seruant, & I sent my warrant for him & the 29™ Richard Plant came
to me & eomplayned of an assanlt made vppon him in Dayes house that
daye & there by one Tho : Richardson. The 30 they came at Mr.
Evelyns before vz, & hycanse Daye was alsoe accused of ill behaviour
& drunkeness & the facts confeszed by them all we ordered that Plante,
Richardson & Daye shoulde paye v® apecee to the poore, & Plante ij?
vi®in fine,

1 Sir Thomas Gresham, of Titscy, knighted at Whitehall, 23rd July,
1603.  Ob. 1630.
VOL. IX. M
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June 1608.

3° Junij Richard Jenkyns of St. Olanes m Sowthwarke as he
affyrmed & Susan his wyfe were taken vagrant here & bronght before
me by Cleofas ffelder & byeause he knewe not certeynely where he
was borne I cansed them to be whypt & sent to St. Olanes with a
pasport.

3° Junij I went to Mr. Evelyns & there we examined Burges of Nut-
feld for stealing ij kyne owte of Bentlye grecne in Hampshyre & then
we alsoe bayled him byeanse noe bodye did thien complayne but the
kyne were taken with him vppon suspicon hy a line & erye.

6 Junij we did there lykewyse examin Tho : Denny= & Alyvee Adams,
John Humfrye eoncerning the deathe of Adams, & then we sent
warrants for ... Harling & ... Chapman of Oxsted for flerretting in
the Priorye parke.

The 16 1 was at Starechamber the 17 I rode to Letherhed to meete
the Justyces abonte the orders for the derthe of Corne! & the 18 I
made the warrants & gotte the hands to them.

The 20t of June Mr, Evelyn & Sir Tho. Hoskyns came to me & we
examined . . .. Harling & .. .. Chapman for ferreiting & we comytted
Harling to the eustodye of his master Mr. Stanymore & the other to
W. Potter the borsholder to terryfye them onlye, & that daye Sir Tho.
Hoskyns hauing sent a warrant for on ealled Tom of Godstone for
taking a hatband from one of John Brookes men- of Oxsted where the
sayd Tom then dwelt which hathand hLe layed to pawne at Wyllyam

1 In the Diary of Walter Gouge, Isq., published by the Camden
Soeiety, 1848, these entries ocenr. ¢ Mareh 1607. This winter last
past hath been sueh an extreme winter for frosts as no man living ever
doth remember or can speak of the like.” “May 1607. An extreme
dearth of corn. Iay was sold this present winter in some places
2s, 6d. per 8321, ¢ Nov. 1608. An extreme dearth of eorn happened
this year by reason of extreme frosts (as the like were never seen) the
winter going before, which caused mnel eorn to fall away ; o that
many did sow barley where their wheat was sown before thinking their
wheat wonld never come to good. This year were very many tem-
pestuous winds,”  (Diary of Walter Gouge, pp. 16, 18.)
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Myles of Blechinglye, the plainfiff being here =ayd he woulde not
pursne vt as ffelonye & Myles gave him his hatband & therefore
we did not proceede any farther iu the matter bnt we all agreed to
leave yt, but I sawe not the partye nor knew whether he was appre-
hended or not, but the warrant was not for ffelonye.

The 21t I sent a warrant against John Charte of Hoerne! and his
wyfe and John Harding at the sute of John Sandes retnrned on
Soudaye 3° Julij.

The 22t [ rode to Kyngston Assysex and there I stayed 23% and
241 dayes. Dotley and Renfyld® whom 1 sent to the Gaole were
there hanged and Burges® whom Mr. Evelyn & T hayled were hurute
in the hande.

xxiij® die Dee. Anno Domini 1608.

Willelmns Bowyer Junior de Warlingham in Com. prediet. hnshand-
man &e. tenetur domine Regi in xHb.

Robertus Baxter de Godstone in Com. prediet. grocer tenetur domino
Regi in vi,

The condition of this Recognyzance ix That yf the within bounden
Wiylliam Bowyer <hall personally appeare at the nexte generall guarter
Sessionx to be holden for this Countye Then and there to answere to
the hunting ehasing & kylling of Conyes in the gronnds of John
Hayward of Warlingham in the same Countye yeoman & shall abyde
the order of the Courte therefore & shall alsoe in the mean tyme be of
goode behaviour towards the king= majestie & all his liege people. That
then &e.

Johannes Hayward de Warlingham in Com. prediet. yomau tenctur
domino Regi in vl

The condition iz to preferr a byll of endytement against Wylliam
Bowyer for hunting & kylling of hix Conyes in his gronndes &e.

26 Dec.

William  Alingham de Nutfeld in Com. predict. yeoman tenetur
domino regi in decem libriz, & Johannes Woodman de eadem yeoman
tenetnur in vl

! Horne. 2 See p. 177. 3 See p. 178,

M2
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The eondition of this Reeognyzannee is That yf the sayde Allingham
shall appeare at the nexte generall quarter Sessions to be holden for
this countye to answere to the hnuting chasing or kylling of conyes
in the grounds of George firythe of Godston, John Ilaywarde of
Woldingham and Jolm Phillip of Warlingham & shall further suffer
& abyde snche further order as the Courte shall then aund there appoynte
that then this Reeognysance to be voyde or else to abyde &e.

Georgius {frythe de Godstone in Com. &e. Johannes Hayward de
Woldingham in Com. predict. yeoman & Johaunes Phillip de War-
lingham &e. tenentur domino Regi in v zeparatim.

The condition is to preferr bills of endytement & give evydence
against Allingham Thomas Clever & Iidwarde Byfer of Reygate for
hunting & stealing theyr conyes.

Janunary 1608.

The 10t daye of Januarye Irode to the quarter Sessiouns at Croydon,
there I returned in all my recognysances before mentioned & 2 others
against vittaylers of Blechinglye which Sir Tho: Hoskyns & I onely
signed.

Bowyer was bounde over againe.

Allingham was dyscharged.

John Berrye whome I =zent to the gaole for stealing Coleocks &
Whitex henns was arrayned & whipt & whereas twoe bylls were
founde against him whereof one was pryzed vj! & thother x4 of
severall men I thought it to be but lareeny vnless ¥t had byne of one
mans goods, vett to avoyde the doubte we arraigned him but vppon one
of them, and the other ¢ : (i.e., quit) for T was gone home.

Bartholomew Gander being accessarye & . . . Roaker, were putt into
the Byll with the principall & by reason of that was quyte, but I
caused them to be hounde over to preferr bylls against them, for we
could uot then trye them there was never a Jurye left.

There were Recognizannces dyxcharged which had byue forfeyted at
the Sessions before which I doubted of, but Mr. Austen tolde me that
the matter was in question before the Barons & the Kings Attornye, &
it was answered that yf there were any eause in equytye to doe vt that
the custome was to dyscharge them.

There was oune alsoe dyscharged who was arrested vppon meane
process who had busyness at the Sessiousz. There we had order against
Mr. Broad & his wyfe for conveying his sernant awaye who had gotten
her mayde with child,
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The order for Baxter to Sir N. Sanders,t Sir Tho. Gresham Mr.
IHayward & me.

The order for Myles for the Bastard to Sir Tho. Gresham Mr.
Hayward & me.

Sir Tho: Muschamp tolde vs that the Judges did make greate doubte
of the lawe for the provysion for the plagne, yf yt werc iu a contryc
Towne by the words of the law, & Mortlack was the causc of the
question.

xiij? Januarij A° Domini 1608.

Georgins Baker de Oxsted in Com. predict. husbandman assumpsit
pro seipso in xM. Et Robertus Chapman de eadem Bryckmaker, assump-
serit pro predicto Georgio Baker in vl separatim : per Recogn.

The Condition of this Recognizaunce is suche that yf the above-
bounden George DBaker shall personally appearc at the nexte gencrall
quarter Sexzious of the peacc to be holden for this Countyc & shall in
the meance tyme keepe the peace towards Edward Dorrant that then
this Recognisance to be voyde &e.

Edward Dorrant remisit Georgio Baker coram me xxij° die Jannarij
Anno Domini 1608.

I made a warrant against Idward Dorrant that xiij® Jannary aforc-
sayd at the sutc of George Baker for the peace.

George Baker released to him the xxij” daye of Januarye before me.

xx? die Jannarij Anno 1608.

Elizabeth Baker Jana Roberts de Revgate in Com. predict. wydow

sworne the 16" assumpsit pro scipsa in x': Samuel Skelton de

daye of January.  cadem husbondman & IHenr. Worley de cadem
Talor assumpserunt pro eadem Jana in vl : vterque
sub conditione sequente.

The Condition of this Recognizance is suche That yf the above-
bounden Jane Roberts shall personally appeare at the nexte generall
quarter Sessions to be holden for thix Countye & shall in the meanc
tyme kepe the peace of our soveraigne lord the king towards Elizabeth
the wyfe of Heurye Baker of Rygate aforesayd That then &e.

Samuel Skelton of Rygate in Com. predict. hushandman & Henr,
Worley de eadem Taylor tenentur domino Regi in x! vterque.

The Condition of this Recognizaunce is that yf Katheryne the wyfe
of the abovebounden S: Skelton shall personally appeare at the next

! Of Ewel.  1le was living in 1638,
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generall quarter Sessions of the peace to be holden for thiz Countye
& shall in the meane tyme kepe the peace of our soverayne lord the
king towards Elizabethe the wyfe of Henr, Baker of Reygate aforesayd.
That then &e.

xx° die Januarij.

Samuel Henr. Baker de Reygate in Com. predict. wollen
Skelton draper recognovit ¢ debere domino Regi x" et Jasper
sworne ftuller de eadem taylor assumpsit pro predicto Henrico

the 18" Jun, in xh,

The Condition of thiz Recognizance tiat the abovebounden Henr.
Baker and Elizabeth his wyfe shall personallye appeare at the nexte
generall guarter Sesszions to be holden for this Countye, and in the
meane tyme shall kepe the peace of owr soveraign lord the king towards
Katheryn the wyfe of Samuell Skelton of Revgate aforesayd’. That
then this Recognyszance to be voyde, otherwyse &e.

ITenr. Baker prediet. et Jasperus ftuller predict. recognoverunt vt
supriL.

The Condyceon that yf the suyvde Henrye Baker and Elizabeth his
wyle shall appear at the next generall quarter Sexsions for this Countye
and in the meane tyme shall kepe the peace towards Jane Roberts of
Revgate wydowe that then &e.

xitj” Januarij Anno 1608.

Ldwardus Rogers de Blechinglye in Com. predict. h: (i.e. hushand-
man) tenctur domino Regi in x'i :

Johanues Rogers de Effingham tu Com. prediet. husbandman et
Johannes Peter de Lyttle Bookham in com. prediet. hoopemaker
lonemm in v vierque.

"he Condicon is That whereas Tho. Kyllyck lnthe accused the sayd
L(l\\'m d Rogers vppon a verve =lyght suspicion of ffelonye of stealing
of a horse which being examined on bothe sydes before me hathe noe
probabilytye & the =ayde Thomas dothe now relinquyshe his accusacon
in that kynde & dothe oncly accuse him of suspicion for heing in an
Alehouse at Bleehingly in suspicious manner, yt now the sayd Edward
Rogers shall at all tymes betwene this and the nexte quarter Sessions
vppon a wekes warning to be left at Wylliam Jones his house appearc
before me at Tanrydg Court to answere to suche matters as on his
majesties behalfe shalbe obiected against him, that then &e.

xiitj° die Jaunarij Anno Domini 1608.
Thomas Kyllycke de Blechinglye in Com. predict. Brewer {enetur
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domino Regi in xU et Edwardus Lawder alias Estlande de eadem hus-
bundman et Thomas Turner de eadem shoemaker tenentur in vl vterque.

The Condicon of thi= Recognysanee is That yf the abovebounden
Thomas Kyllyek shall appeare at the nexte generall quarter Sessions
& in the meane tyme kepe the peace towards Edwarde Rogers of
Blechingly, That then this Recognysance to be voyde &e. otherwyse &e.

The said Edward Rogers dothe offer to sweare that the sayd Tho:
Kyllyck was dronke at Chilmans louse the xijh daye of this Januarye
& the said Edward did voluntaryly swear soe muche before me, and
therevppon he voluntaryly paid v, which 1 delivered to the Constable
to give to the overseers of the parish this daye.

) xij die flebruarij Anno Domini 1608.

Alycia Adams de Godstone in Com. prediet. vidua recognovit se
debere domino Regi v,

The Condicon of this Recognizance is That yf the sayd Alyce
Adams shall appearc at the next generall gaole deliverye & there
preferr a byll of indytement against Robert Iwyns alias Butcher for
the killing of her husband Thomas Adams and shall give evydence
vppon the same, That then &e.

1609.
Richard I cent a warrant for the peace & other mysdemeanours
Kyllyek  against Richard Roker of Nutfelde vj® April.
sworne.
9° die Aprilis A° Dni. 1609.

Ricardus Roker de Nutfeld in Com. predict husbandman tenetur
domino Regi in x%  Ricardus Jurye de eadem tanner & Robertus
Holmewoode de eadem hushandman tenentur in v vterque.

The Condicon that the sayd Richard Roker shall appeare at the
next generall sessions of the peace to be holden at Reygate & in the
meane seazon {o kepe the peaece towards Richard Iyllyck of Corn-
mongers ! & Jone his wyfe. That then &e.

Ricardus Roker Ricardus Kyllyck de Cornmongers in parochia de

sworne against  Nutfeld in Com. predict. &e. tenetur domino Regi

the said Rich. in xH

Kyllyek. Johaunes Wodman de Nutfeld predict. yeoman et
Ricardus Jurye de eadem yeoman tenentur domino

Regi in v! vterque.

Now, Cormongers.
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The Condicon that the said Rich. Killyck shall appeare at the next
quarter Sessions at Rygate & in the meane scason to kepe the peace
towards Richard Roker. That then &e.

Memorandum that the xv® daye of Aprill Auno Diii 1609 Richard
Kyllycke of Cornmonger in the parishe of Nutfeld in the Conntye
aforesayd did personallye come Dbefore me And as muche as in him
was did remyse & release the scenrytye of the peace which he had
before required before me against Richard Roker.  In wytness &e.

Richard Killick.

Memorandum that the daye & yeare aforesayvd Richard Roker of
Nutfeld aforesayd did personallye come before me and as muche as in
him was did remyse & release the secnrytye of the peace which he had
before required Dbefore me against Richard Kyllveke of Cornmongers
in tho parizhe of Nutfeld aforesayd. In wytness &e.

1609.

The 28™ of Aprill T rode to Revgate Sessions where were the 2
Greshams, ! R. Cowper,? Fr. Vyncent, 3 Th. IToskyns knights, & Mr.
Poynes,t Wygnall? Th. Evelyn & myselfe & none of vs came prepared
to give the charge my sclfe having byne soe dystracted by extremytye
of my =onne Deyers busyness ax I had noe leysure of one daye. But
at theire importunytye I gave an exhortacon to the Juryes of betwene
a quarter & halfe an houre, & then cansed the Clarke of the peace to
reade the lawes. I did manage most of the busyness & came home at
night & was there againe all the nexte daye tyll the Sessions ended.

I there gott Baxters warrant for iiij"* per annum as a soldier &e.

All those which were bounde by my recognysances appeared &
agrecd & were dyscharged with their ffecs.

Aprill 1609.
Memorandum the 28% of Aprill 1 was at a meeting at Godstone for
the acconnts of the overseers &e. & there we bounde Rieh. Ropkyn of

L Sir William and Sir Thomas.

2 Sir Richard Cowper of Temple Elfant Capel, knighted at White-
hall, 23rd July, 1603.

3 Sir I'rancis Vineent of Stock D'abernon.  Knighted at Whitehall,
23rd July, 1603 ; created a baronet, 26th July, 1620 ; M., for
Surrey, 1625. i

1 John Poyntz of Woodhateh, Reigate.

% Probably William Wignall, Sheriff of Surrey, 1613,
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Caterham to appearc at the nexte Sessions vppon a peticon of thin-
habitants of Caterham.
Mr, Hayward promysed me to certyfye this Recognisance.

Vltimo die Maij.

firancizeus Creede de Reygate in Com. predict. yveoman tenetur
domino Regi in xx%  Beniamin Cowper de¢ eadem tenctur cidem
domino Regi in x!": ¢t Carvolus Hudgson de Stoke iuxta Guildford in
Com. predict. husbondman tenctur eidem domino Regi in xt,

The Condicon of &ec is That yf the abovebounden ffrancys Creede
doe personallye appeare at the nexte generall quarter Sessions to be
Lolden for this Countye at Kyngston vppon Thames & in the meane
tyme shall kepe the peace of our soveraigne lorde the king towards all
his maiesties liege people & ezpeceyally towards John Palmer of Rey-
gate aforesayd  That then &e.

xxvj° die Juanij.

Phillip ffoster de Hoorne in Com. predict. husbandman tenctur
domino Regi in xi. Tho: fienner de eadem yoman et Nicholus Doggett
de eadem yoman tenentur vterque in v sul) Condicione sequente.

The Condicon of this Recognizance is That yf the abovebounden
Phillip ffoster shall personally appeare at the nexte gencrall ynarter
Sessions of the peace for this county to be holden at Kingston & in
the meane tyme kepe the peace of our soveraigne lord the king towards
all his liege people & espeeyally towards Nicholas Wright of IHoorne
Thatcher That then this Recognisance to be voyde &e. or els to
abyde in his floree & vertue.

This partye was bronght {o me by vertue of a warrant from Sir
Wyllyam Gardyner.!

Memorandum quod xv° die Augusti proximo sequenti Nicholaus
Wrighte venit coram me & gratis remizit et relaxauit quantum in sc¢
est predictam securitatenr pacis per ipsum versus supranominatnm
Philippum ffoster petit.  In euius rei Testimonium &e.

the marke of
nichus Wrighte.

I Knighted at the Tower of London, 13th May, 1603 ; of Lagham,
Godstone. Died 1622.
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Memorandum the 29% daye of June 1 sent a warrant for the peace
against . . . . DBurges of loorne and to appeare at Kingston
Sessions at the sute of Richard Grane of Nutfeld.

8° die Decemb. A° diit 1609.

Robertus Butcher alias Ewyns Jnnior de Merstham in Com. predict.
butcher tenetur domino Regi in xx,  Edwardus Holman de Godstone
in Com. predict. ycoman et Nicholax Gawton de Merstham i com.
prediet yeoman tenentur eidem domino Regis in x! vterque.

The Condicon is that yf the abovehounden Robert Butcher alias
Twyns doe personaltly appeare at the nexte generall quarter sessions of
the peace to be holden for this Conntye & in the meane tyme kepe the
peace towards our soneraign lorde the king and all his liege people &
espeeyally towards John Ilolmewoode of Reygate in the Countye
warryuer  That then &e.

Memorandum the xjt" daye Robert Ewyns did sweare & had a
warrant for the peace against Holmewood.

10 die Dee. A° Dni. 1609.

Robert Arnold alias Horningole de Crowhurst in Com. prediet.
Sawyer tenctur domino Regi in vl Ricardus Cawston de eadem yoman
tenetnr eidem domino Regi in vi,

The Condicon of this Recognisance ix That whereas the above-
bounden Robert Armold alias IToruingole is accused by John Grove
Sawyer for casting of a boordelogg of the right hon. the Earle of
Dorsett? into a Sawpitt when yt was almost all sawed whereby it was
neere =poyled, yf nowe the sayd Robherte shall appeare at the nexte
quarter Sessions of the peace to be holden for this Countye to Answere
to the sayd accusacon & shall abyde the order of the Conrte therein
That then &e.

Johannes Grove de Estgrinsted in Com. Sussex tenetur domino
Regi in vi,

I Richard, third Earl of Dorset. Ife owned Hunt's al. Sunt in
Oxted, on the confines of Crowhurst (Rental of Oxted, cire. 1608).
There is a presentment on the Court Rolls of Titsey, 7th April, 1609,
that Sualomon Cole had sold lands in Crowhurst to Thomas, Earl of
Dorset, and that Reginald Holmden had sold Rapkyns to him. He
was erandfather of Richard, third LSarl.
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The Condicon to preferr a byll of endytement against Roberte
Arnold for the said Canse & at the next generall quarter Sessions for
this County for the Canse abovesayd.

8° die Januarij A° Dni. 1609,

Robertus Warne de Oxsted in Com. predict. myller tenetur domino
Regi in x".  Ienrieus Tueker de Lymsfeld in Com. predict. Carpeuter,
et Thomas ITeathe de eadem in codem Com. Carpenter tenentur
vterque in vl

The Condicon of this Recognizance iz That vf the sayd Roberte
Warne doe appeare at the nexte generall quarter Sessions to be holden
at Reygate & there answere to the assaulting beating & wounding of
Thomas Alton & John Greene & others & shall in the meane tyme
kepe the peace againzt them & all his majesties licge people That
then &e.

Mem. this Thomas Groue de Estgrinsted in Com. Sussex
deede was Sawyer tenetur domino Regi in x% & predict.
done vppon  manucapt. vt supra,

the saboth day The Condicon vt supra.
& was all Edwardus Ilarman de Estgrinsted predict. tenetur
one facte. in x% & manucapt. prediet. ut supra.

The Condicon vt supra.

Maye 1611.

The 17% Maye 1611 I xent a warrant for the peace to the offycers
of Reygate against . . . Tavler wydowe and Wyllyam Tayler
Nicholas Tayler, Thomas Tayler & Maryve Tayler ad servieium Rie.
Grone alias Ingrame ret [7.e. returnable] at ingston Sessions.

June 1611.

The 15" daye I sent a warrant to the offycers of Merstham agaiust
Agnes Bromefeld for wounding wydowe Laker.

Vltimo die Junij A° Dni. 1611.

Anne Bromefeld de Mestham in Com. predict. spinster tenetur
domino Regi in xx!,

Robertus Bromefeld de cadem husbondman & Thomas Bromefeld de
cadem hushondman tenentur domino Regi vterque in x5,

The Condicont &e.  That whereas the abovebounden Agnes
Bromefeld hathe beaten & wounded Dorothye Laker wydowe on the
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xxt! dave of this June, vif the said Agnes Bromefeld shall appeare at
the nexte generall guarter Sessions to be holden for this Countye at
Kingston vppon Thames there to Answere the said offence & in the
meane tyme shall kepe the peace towards the said . . . Laker
wydowe, That then &e.

xxij Jnlij.

Edwardns Holmewoode de Reygate in Com. predict. yoman tenetur
domino Regi in xI%.  Robertus Ileathfelde de cadem Inkeper ct
Robertus Saker de Estbeehworth in Com, prediet. yoman tenentur
vterque in xxH,

The Condicon is that the said Edwarde ITolmewood shall kepe the
peace towards hiz maiestic and all his liege people & especyallye
towards Roberte Woodman of Collye and shall personallye appeare at
the nexte quarter Sessions of the peace to be holden for this Countye
at Croydon.

Memorandum that the vjt" of Januarye the said Roberte Woodman
did personallye appeare before me & release the suerty of the peace
against the said Edward Holmwood as muche as in him was.

Memorandum they did affyrme to me that they thought the warrant
against this defendant was ret[urnable] at Croydon, for I did long denye
them this supposition: bycanse yt was not ret[urnable] at the next
Sessions: but in the ende with theire importunytye byeanse they
vowed that the matter was to be ended & this was the meanes to
bring yt to a good ende & to avoyde muche Suytes at lawe I granted
vt

Memorandum I sent a warrant of the peace against . . . . .

Bowyer of Blechinglye buteher adserviecimn . . . . Cuddington
who did sweare the peace again=t him . . . . August and have

noe answere. (¢
I rent alzoc to that Constable a warrant for a mayde servant at
the sute of . . . Morgan &e. q:

October 1611.

I made a warrant vppon a supplication against William Blundell
the 18th of October to the offycers of Blechingleigh ads.! Skynner
and one Buaxster.

1 Ad servitium,
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December 26 1611.

Radulphus Monnke de Bleehinglye in eom. predict. tenetur domino
Regi in xI". Johannes Dwkyn de eadem yoman et Anthonius
fiynche de eadem yoman tenentur domino Regi in xx! vierque.

This was returned aceordinglye.

The Condicou of this Recognyzance is That yffthe abouebonnden
Raffe Monnke shall personallye appeare at the nexte generall Sessions
of the peace to be holden for this Countye at Croyvdon in the said
Countye and shall the Answere to the aeensacon of Agnes Parker
wyfe of Charles Parker for vppon the waye offering by violenee to
abuse her body on Monday the ix™ daye of this December whereby
she being then with child dothe suspeet herselfe to be soe hurte that
her Childe maye be in danger in her hodye &e. and in the meane
tyme shalbe of goode behaviour towards his majestic and all his liege
people. That then &e.

Jannarye 1611.
15° die Jan.

Nicholaus Elsey de Mestham in Com. prediet. husbondman tenetur
domino Regi in x".  Arnoldus Coker de eadem husbondman &
Wyllelmus  Aynscombe de eadem  husbondman tenentur vterque
in v,

The Condicon That whereas Michaell Wylson John Bridgell and
Gyles Bridgell have aceused the said Nicholas Elsey Arnolde Coker
and William Aynseombe for making an assaulte and afiray uppou
them and one Edward Elwoode the vijt daye of this month of
Januarye, yff the said Nicholas Elsey shall appeare at the unexte
generall quarter Sessions of the peace to be holden at Reygate for
this Countye, and shall abyde the order of Conrte concerning the
said assaulte and affraye, and in the meane space shall keepe the
peace of our zoueraigne lord the king towards the said Michaell
John Gyles and Edwarde. That then this present Recognizannece
to be voyde &e.

eodem die,

Arnoldus Coker de Mestham in Com. prediet. hushondman tenetur
domino Regi in x" Nicholaus Elsey de eadem hushondman &
Willelmus Ayuscombe de eadem husbondman tenentur vterque in v,

The Condicon vt supra.
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codem die.

Willelmus Ayuscombe de Mestham in Com. predict. hushondman
tenetur domino Regi in x' Nicholans Elsey de eadem husbondman
ct Arnoldns Coker de eadem hushondman tenentur vterque in vii.

The Condicon vt supra.

All these were released before the Sessions.

15° Januarij 1611.

Michaell Wylson de Blechinglye in eom. predict. Taylor tenetur
domino Regi in x%  Johaunes Brydgell de cadem plowewrighte et
Egidins Brydgell de eadem sheather.

The Condiecon of this Recognizanee is That whereas the above-
bounden Michaell Wylzon is acensed by Nicholas Iilsey of Mestham
for making of an assaulte and affraye vppon the said Nicholas at
Mestham the 7 daye of this instant monthe of Januarye, yff now
the said Michaell Wylson shall appeare at the nexte generall quarter
Sessions of the peace to be holden at Reygate for this Countye, and
shall there abyde the order of the Conrte concerning the said affraye
and in the meane tyme shall kepe the peace of our soveraigne lord
the king towards the said Nicholas Elsey, That then this Recogni-
zance to be voyde &e.

This was also released before the Sessions.

9° Februarye 1611.

Thomas Iaywarde de Caterham in Com. predict. hushondman
tenetur domino Regi in x', ¢t Thomas Rowhedd de eadem husband-
man ct Ricardus Iayward de Woidingham in eadem Com. husband-
man tenctur vterque domino Regi in x'. :

The Condicon of this Recognizanece is That whereas Richard
Kempsall of Blechinglye in the sayd Countye hathe acensed the said
Thomas ITayward & others for hunting and killing his conyes in
his enclosed grounde on Sundaye the xxvjh daye of the monthe
of January last contrarye to the lawe in that ease provyded, yif now
the said Thomas Hayward shall personallye appeare at the nexte
gencrall Seszionx of the peace to he holden at Reygate for this
Countye & shall there answere to the said acensacon & abyde the
order of the Courte therefore. That then this Recognizance to he
vovde &e.

codem die.

Thomas Rowhedd de Caterham in Com, predict, husbandman
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tenctur domino Regi in x! et Thomas Hayward de eadem husbandman
et Ricardus Hayward! de Woldingham in Com. predict. husbandman
tenentur vterque domino Regi in xU.

The Condicon vt supra.

Memorandum that daye I did swere William Best the Constable of
Caterham.

I alsoe did sweare the hedborowe of Nutfeld & of DBleehinglye
boroughe vt puto.

5° die flebr. A° Diii 1611.

Coram Tho. Hoskyns milite et Bostoke ffuller arm. Jana Roberts
de Reygate in Com. predict. spinster, tenetur domino Regi in €' marcis,
Erasmus Byshe ? de eadem mercer et Samuel Wylde de eadem Brewer
tenentur guolibet in xxx!.

The Condycon that Jaune Roberts shall personallye appear at the
nexte generall gaole deliverye to be holden in the said Countye & shall
then & there answere to the suspicon of Comytting diverse felonious
wytcherafts, whereof she is accused by one Peter Woodstock &
others, & abyde the order of the said Conrte therein, That then, &e.

All these were returned aecordinglye & the byll not fonnde by
the greate enquest.

Coram cisdem 5° die ffebr.

Petrns Woodstock de Reygate tenetur domino Regi in x'i,

The Condicon is 'That whereas Jane Roberts of Reygate spinster
was this daye by the said Peter broughte before vs the said Justyces
& was by him charged with snspicon of certeyne ffelonious wyteh-
crafts yff therefore the said Peter Woodstocke shall & wyll at the
nexte generall gaole deliverye to be holden in the said Countye preferr
or cause to be preferred one or more bylls of endytement against the
said Jane Roberts for the said wytcheraft & shall & wyll give
evydence there concerning the same, aswell to the Jurors that shall
then enquire of the same as alsoe to them that shall passe vppon
the tryall of the said Jane, That then &e,

! e owned the Nether Court Lodge in Woldingham, and died
31st Angust, 1617.

2 Of Reigate, fifth <on of Joln Bish, of Burstow, Esq.; buried at
Reigate, 19th September, 1627, “Erasmus Bysshe, gent.” (Par. Reg.)
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Coram eisdem eodem die,

Heur. Baker de Revgate tenetur in x',

The condicon that yff the said Henrye Baker shall make his
personall appearance at the nexte generall gaole deliverye & shall
then & there give evydence against Jane Roberts of Reygate spinster
coucerning the suspicion of wytcherafts whereof she is aceused,
as well to the Jurors that shall enquire thereof as to them that shall
passe vpon the tryull of the said Jane That then &e.

Coram eisdem eodem die.

firancizcus Best de Reygate in Com. prediet. husbandman tenetur
i ==,
The Condicon as that of Bakers last before.

Coram Bostoke fluller 9° flebr, #di.

Ricardus Grome tenetur domino Regi in x'.
The Condicon as the last,

Primo die Martij A° Dui 1611,

Memorandum That whercas Richarde Kempsall had aceused
Thomas Iaywarde & Thomas Rowhedd of Caterham for hunting
& killing his Conyes & ecaused them to be bounde to appeare at the
nexte quarter Sessions to be holden at Reygate, to answere to the
said aceusacon, nowe the said Richard Kempsall hathe this daye
comen before me Bostok finller esquire one of the Justyces of the
peace of this Countye and hathe as muche ax in him is remysed &
released the said Thomas Hayward & Thomas Rowhedd of the said
acensacon of lunting, In wytness whereof he hatlie hereto sett his
hande.

the marke of Richard
Kempsall.

Aprill 1612.
A warr[ant agst] Allingham of Nutfeld Carpenter for brawling
in the Clmrehe & as it was said striking olde Sander alias Waslyn.

I agreed them.

The 18th we were at Godstone aboute the acecounte of the over-
seers for the poore.

A warrant against the Lennards ads Lusted comytted to Jo. Humfrye
& Jeff. Chilman,
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A warrant to remove Margarctt . . . . from Oxsted to Ilst-
grinsted.

Maye 1612.

A warrfant] against . . . . the wyfe of Wyllyam Best for
holding possession of Sir W. Swans hounse lett to Robert Squyer the
vijth of Maye. Agreed.

The viij* daye I sent Kath. Yonge to the gaole for ficlonye.

The viij* daye a warrant for Wyllyam Kymbyr against Jone
Wiylford his prentyce for robbing him & running away.

Maye 1612.

IKatheryn Robynson broughte before me for robbing Heavers house
of Horley & sent to the gaole vj° Maij. She was founde guyltye
of petye larcenye at Kingston assizes following.

Katheryn Marden brought before me for suspicon of receaving
the said goods xvij® Maij & bayled before Sir Tho: Iloskyns & my
selfe. She was quit at the assyses. Willelmus Marden et Rowland
Bromefeld tenentnr in x! vterque eodem die.

The Condycon that she shall appeare & answere the said accusacon.

xxj Maij.

Ricardus Heaner de Horley tenctur in xU.
The Condycon to preferr bylls against them and give evydence &e.

Julye 1612,

Memorandnm The 22t of Julye Samuell Reynolds came hefore me
& tooke his corporall oathe That Thomas Drooker, Thomas Norrys,
Edward Terrye of Oxsted, & John Greene of Crowhurst did assanlte
beate & evyll intreate him on Sonday last being the 19 daye of this
monthe, & that he feares they wyll doe him more bodyly hurte &
therefore requyred the peace which I granted to him by one warrant
to Oxsted & another to Crowhurst.

That daye I made a warrant to Blechinglye against Tho. Blarne
ads. . ... Lander.

The ix*™ daye Reynolds & Tho: Brooker, Tho. Norrys &
LEdw. Terry were before me & I bounde them to be before me
againce the xxiij* daye of this month or clse at Kingston sessions
& in the meane tyme to kepe the peace towards cache other,

YOL. IX. N
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They all appeared that daye before me & eomytted the matter to
arbytrament.

October the first 1612,

Bartylmewe Comporte sworne before me the flirst daye Constable of
Oxsted.
William Killyek hedborowe of Oxsted sworne that daye.

4° Qetober 1612,

Memorandum That whereas Samnell Reynolds hathe required the
suertye peace against Tho. Brooker Thomas Norrys Edward
Terrye & John Greene which was also granted vnto him, he the said
S. Reynolds hathe this daye as muehe as in him lyethe before me
released the =aid suertye of the penee against all the said persons.

Samnell
Rennonlds.

Memorandum that whereas Tho. Brooker & Thomas Norrys haue
likewyse had the suertye of the peace granted against the said Samuell
Reynolds they haue likewyse this daye before me as mnehe as in them
lyvethe released the said suertye of the peace against him.

The mark of the marke of

Tho. Brooker. Thomas Norrys.

Oetober 1612.

I sent a warrant to the offyeers of Nutfeld for® Nicholas Neale &
Thomas Roker.

13° Oectober.

Niecholans Neale de Nutfeld in Com. prediet. shearman! tenetur domino
Regi in xx'.  Georgins Neale de eadem weaver, & Willelmus Dudgin
de eadem Taylor tenentur domino Regi in x" vterque.

The condieon of this Recognizance is snehe That whereas the aboue-
bounden Nicholas Neale is aceunszed by Thomas Denys for killing &
stealing the Conyes of the said Denys yff nowe the said Nicholas
Neale shall personallie appeare at the nexte generall quarter Sessions
of the peace to be holden at Croydon for this Countye, And shall
answere vuto the saide aceusacon & abyde the order of the said Courte
therein, That then this present Reeognizanee to be voyde &e.

1 A clothworker.
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Tho : Denys released this Recognisance &e. the xjtb of
Januarye following.

xviijo die Oetobris Anno Dii 1612.

Ricardus ftermer de Tanrydge juratus Constabulus pro anno iam
sequeltte,

November 22°,

I sent a warrant to serche for sheepe of Richard Woode in Tanrydge.

I sent another warrant the second tyme to the Constable &e. of
Reygate against Richard Heath & others for spoyling Sanders woode
of Nutfeld.

Dee. 22° 1612,

Robertus Richbell de Reygate in Com. prediet. hushandman tenctur
domino Regi in xx'.  Johannes Rodes de eadem husbandman et Henr.
Allingham de eadem husbandman tenentur in x" vterque.

The Condieon of this Recognizance is suche that whereas the
abouebounden Roberte Richbell is accused for huntinge & killing of
Conyes in the groundes of the right hon. Therle of Nottingham lorde
highe Admyrall of England! on Satyrday night last being the 18™"
daye of this monthe of December yff nowe the said Roberte Richbell
shall appeare at the nexte generall Sessions of the peace to be holden
for this Countye at Reygate in the said Countye & shall there answere
to the said accusacon & abyde the order of the said Courte therein &
in the meane tyme shalbe of goede behaviour, That then &e.

23 Dee.
I sent a warrant for Richard Mathewe of Reygate for hunting my
lord admyralls Conyes.
xxix® Dee. 1612,

Thomas Dane Constable of Chelsham sworne hefore me.

Jannarye xi® 1612.

I sent a warrant for William Marden of Blechinglye ads. Niel.
Neale.

! Charles Howard, Earl of Nottingham, of the Priory, Reigate,
buried at Reigate, 18th December, 162.4.
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The xij daye I rode to Croydon Sessions.

The xiiij daye Richard Vaghan a drover was bronghte before me
by my lord TTowards! baylyfl for suspicon of stealing sheepe & the
nexte daye I dyscharged him vppon Mr. Worlyes letters.

Memorandum the xviij daye of Januarye I sett my hande & seale
to a lycense for Mr. Copley? to travayle to Rushey® & London & Middle-
sex for vj monthes which lycense was broughte to me vnder the hande
& seale of Mr. Evelyn testyfyeing that he had taken his othe before
him, & the sernant tolde me that he brought my lord Arundels
letters to testyfye his eonsent.

Feb. 1612.

I sent a warrant to Blechinglic r[eturnable] 14 for Robert Tosbye
ads Chapman they came & appoynted to come againe the nexte
morning yt was breache of peace &e.

I sent a warrant the I7™ daye to Lingfeld against Grombridge
dryver & alii ads. dryvers wyfe.

Marche.

The 3% of Marche Irode to thassises in Sowthewarke which began
the 4t of Marche.
The xxixt® of Marche I rode to Croydon to the musters.

I rode to Reygate to the quarter Sessions the 12 of April.
The 19t of April I rode to Croydon to the musters & returned.

Aprill 1613.

I sctt my hande to 3 Indentures whereby the Children of one Sparke
of Nutfeld were bounde prentyses according to the Statute of the
poore 21 April, viz. Thomas Sparke to John Gawton for xij yeares,
ETustace Sparke to Robert Ilillyeke for xj yeres, Jone Sparke to Tho.
Darbye for xv yeres.

1 William, Lord IToward, eldest son of the Earl of Liffingham ; he
lived at Haling Park, Croydon. DBorn at Reigate 27th December,
1577 ; baptized there 8rd Janmary following ; died in his father's
lifetime, 1614.

2 Probably one of the Gatton family, and a son of Sir Thomas
Copley.

8 ¢Roffey’ or ‘Roughay.” The Copley family had a considerable
estate at Roughay, in Sussex,
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Aprill 1613.

The 21 T ended a Controversye betwene Edw: Lye & Mr. Parker,
viz. They bounde themselves by assumpsit in xx¥ vterque to abide
my award, I ordered that the lease shoulde be voyde which Parker had
lett to Lye, & that it shoulde ecase at Michaclmas laste, and that Edw.
Lye shoulde haune his owne Tythe from last Michaelmas to next
Michaclmas firce & alsoe the Tythe of a Coppyse of ij acres or there-
abouts which hLe is to fell the nexte wynter and all other demands to
cease & determyne.

Aprill 1613.

The 26t daye I made an Agreement betwene my Cosen Thomas
Ellyott & my Cosen . . . . Worley, viz. That my Cosen Ellyott
should sell all his righte & estate which he hathe by reason of the
wyll of Rich. Ellyott to my Cosen Worley, & to doe snuche acts for the
assuranee as learned Counsell should advyse, and that my cosen Worley
shold paye him therefore 2000 in 2 yeares by 5008 halfycrely & 50t
at the perfecting of the Conveyance, & 1004 which was layd owte
about ffunerall &e. & my Cosen Ellyott is to lose his dett of 2401 &
hLis anuytye of 204 per annmn, & Mr. Worley is to dyscharge him of
all detts, charges & Incumbrances whatsoever concerning his Brother
or nephew.

Maye 1613.

The first of Maye I rode to Godstone to a meeting aboute Rogues &
the house of Correction, ’

The 7% of May I sent a warrant for ffrancys Hacher & John
ITacher of Chepsted aboute sheepe that one Hawkyns in Sussex was
suspected to steale.

I then sent another warrant to Cowlsdon for Phillip Norton concern-
ing the same matter ads. Westdene of Heathfeld.

Maye 24°,

Thomas Simonds de Nutfell in Com. predict. collyer? tenetur
domino Regi in x. Robertus Homewood de Blechinglye in Com.
prediet. husbandman et Johannes Ashburne de cadem husbandman
tenentur vterque in vl

The condicon &e. That whercas the aboucbounden Thomas Simonds
hathe assaulted beaten and evill treated Richard Blundell and the said

1 A term used for a charcoal burner.
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Yichard Blundell is afrayde that he wyll againe assaunlte evyll treate

or doe some bodyly harme to him, yff nowe the =aid Thomas Simonds

shall personallie appeare at the nexte generall Sessions of the peace to

be holden for this Countye at Kingston vppon Thames, & in the meane

tyme ~hall kepe the peace of our soueraigne lord the king towards the

gaid Richard Blundell, That then this Recognizance to be voyde &e.
This was presentlye agreed & the xU released.

June 1613.

The 24 I gsent a warrant to Reygate for Tho: Wonham & Agnes
his wyfe &e. ad servitium Nich. Best & they appeared the nexte daye
& 1 sent a warrant then for Robert Best.  Woneham bonude for his
wyves appearance at nexte assyses 3° Junij.

The 42 of June.

Tho. Humfrye de Charlewood tenetur domino Regi in xx4, The
Condicon to appear at Kingston Sessions, I gave him daye tyll
Sondaye 13 Junij & he to bring all the parties &e. et comparuit.

Amias Gullock broughte to me by the offycers of Gatton the 4'h
daye of June for stealing of a petycote whieh was taken with him ;
It the partic wonld not accuse him of ffelonye, & he =aid he boughte
it. I canred him to be whipte & seut to the place of his byrthe
at Combe by Charde in Somersetslhire. '

vj® die Junij Anno Dii 1613.

Stephanus Rogers de Blechingley Brewer tenctur Domino Regi in
xli,  Johannes Homewoode de cadem Brewer ct Johannes Lambe de
cadem yeoman tenentur domino Regi in v vterque.  3° October this
was altered,

The condicon that whereas the said Stephen Rogers did vppon last
Whitsonmondaye shoote in a gunne & kyll one of Andrewe Wardes
conyes in his warren in Tanrydg, which shooting onlye he confessed
before me this daye, yff nowe the said Stephen shall appeare at the
nexte gencrall Se=sions of the peace to be holden at Croydou for this
countye and shall there answere the said offences & in the meanc-

tyme shalbe of goode behaniour.  That then &e.
Thomas ?
Johannes Hmmfrye de Charlewood et Edrus Cot-

tingham de eadem tenentur in xx!, vterque,
The condicon to appearc before me at Tanrydge on Sondaye next
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being the 20 of this June or else at Kingston Sessions, & alsoc
Suzan the wyfe of Joseph Ashborne shall appeare likewyse to abyde
the order of the Courte &e.

Julye 19, 1613.

Johannes Lambe de Blechinglye in Com. predict. yeoman tenetur
domino Regi inx', Stephanns Rogers de eadem Brewer tenetur domino
Regi in v, This was altered 3° Octeber.

The condicon &e. That whereas the abouebounden John Lambe is
accused by Tho. Dennys for shooting in a gunne & vnlawfullie killing
of his econyes, yff nowe the said John Lambe shall appeare at the nexte
generall Sessions of the peace to be holden at Croydon for this countye
to answere to the said aceusacon & shall abyde the order of the Courte
therein, That then this Recognizance &e.

120 July.

A warrant against George Dewdency late servant of . . . .
Pullinger for stealing his masters Tooles after his deathe to the Con-
stable of Ilorley Julii.

November 1613.

Memorandum the 1 of November 1613 T ministered the oathe to
George Somerton Constable of Lingfeld.

November 1613.

The 28" I sent a warrant for Robert Allingham to Nutfeld vppon
complaint for stealing a swine! and akernes in a bagg from Allens
wydowe, the first of December he was brounght to me & T tooke order
to have him forthe comiung, Roffey the hedborowe vndertooke for
him, the woman would not pursue yt as felonye, before Burchin, Tyler,
Barnes & Constable & Roffey hiedborowe. Iecaused him to be broughte
before Sir Tho. Gresham, Sir Tho. Bludder,” Mr. Wygnall® & Mr.
Hayward at Godstone the x™ of December at a meeting after muche
reasoning they lett him goe.

L This word is very indistinet ; it has been read ¢sword.

2 Of Flanchford in Reigate, knighted at Chatham, 4th July, 1604 ;
buried at Reigate, 3rd November, 1618.

3 See entry of April, 1609, and note. ITis name appears in the Rental
on page 230 as owning lands in Tandridge.
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I sent a warrant then for George Ayre & dJohn Skyte & Agnes his
wyfe to Mestham.

December 1613, ij° die.

Georgius  Ayre de Letherhed in Com. predict. yoman, tenctur
domino Regi in decem libriz, Johannes Newett de Mestham in Com,
predict. Carpenter & Thomas Wyekham de cadem mason tenentur in
vi vterque.

The condicon of this Recognizance is That yff the abouchounden
George Ayre shall personallie appeare at the nexte generall Sessions
of the peace to be holden for this Countye at Croyden in the said
Countye, and in the meane tyme shall kepe the peace of our soueraigne
lorde the King towards all his liege people & espeeiallie towards John
Thorne and shall abyde the order of the said courte. That then &e.

He threatned Thorne being borsholder! that he would be revenged
vppon him when he was owte of his offyee for reproving him in Skytes
house & Skytes wyfe & he did thrust him from him &e.

xxiij* December 1613,

Willelmus Haywarde de Warlingham Junior yoman tenetur domino
Regi in x1, Ldwardus Lye de Clelsham tenetur domino Regi in xx!

The Condicon. That whercas the aboue bounden William Hay-
warde is accused by William Woode of Chelsham for entering into his
grounde with diverse other persons to the number of viij and killing &
taking awaye his conyes & assaunlting beating & wounding his seruants,
the xxijt" daye of this monthe of December in the nighte, yff nowe the
savd William ITaywarde shall personallic appeare at the nexte gencrall
Sessions to be holden at Croydon for this countye to answere to the
said accensacon and shall abyde the order of the =aid Courte therein,
That then this Recognizance to be voyde &e.

1 sent these 4 Recognizances to Croydon Sessious.

I sent a warrant for William Myles of Blechinglye ads: Tho.
Denys 10 Jan.

I sent a warrant to Merstham against William Aynscombe &
Thomas Wyckham ads: Beckett for kylling his conyes & beating
his seruant & shooting in a gonne.

xxiij die Jannarij Anno 1613.

Willelmus Aynscombe de Mestham in Com. predict. husbandman

1 A head constable.
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tenetur domino Regi in x%  Johannes Thorne de eadem husbandman
tenctur similiter in v,

The condicon of this Recognizance is suche That whereas the within-
bonnden W: A :is accused by William Beckett for entering into his
warren of Conyes in Caterham and killing his conyes there & for
assaulting Dbeating and evill intreating ITenrye White sernant of the
said William Beckett yff the said W: A : shall personallic appeare at
the nexte generall Sessions of the peace to be holden for this conntye
at Reygate to answere to the said offences & in the meane tywie shall
kepe the peace of our soueraigne lord the king towards the said IHenrye
White. That then the Recognizance to he voyde &e.

2 ffebruarij Anno 1613.

Ricardus Woodden de Chelsham in Com. predict. husbandman
tenctur domino Regi in xx': Thomas Daye de cadem husbandman
tenctur in x'.

The condicon of this Recognizaunce is suche That whereas the
withinbounden Richard Wodden is accused by William Wood for
entering into his grounds in Chelsham with diverse other persons the
xxij daye of December last in the night & for killing his conyes
there & for assaulting and wounding the servants of the said W. W.
yif nowe the said Richard Woodden shall personallic appeare at the
nexte generall quarter Sessions of the peace to be holden for this
countye at Reygate in the said conntyc and shall then & there answere
to tho said acensacon & abyde the order of the Courte therein That
then this Recognizance to be voyde & of none cffect &e.

7o ficbr.

Iiliz. Lye was broughte before me for suspicon of endeuoring {o
burne Mr. Bests house. I left her with the Constable for suertye. I
tooke the examinacons.

I sent a warrant for Richard Botley for suspicon aboute sheepe &
lambs & for his dogg for kylling lambs & in serche. The Constable
founde a pecee, 1 tooke yt & sent him for his dogg to be hanged, & for
him to finde suertye for the Sessions.

viij° die ffebr, Anno Dii 1613.

Simon a Lye de Caterham in Com. predict. husbandman : Willelmus
Terrye de eadem husbandman : Thomas Bassett de cadem husbandman
tenentur domino Regi in x! quilibet.
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The Coundicon of this Recognizauee is suche That whereas Elizabeth
Lye danghter of the said Simon is aecused for burninge certaine
bedding & other goods of William Best of Caterham her master & for
other mysdemeanors, yff nowe the said Elizabeth shall personallie
appearc at the nexte generall Sessions of the peace to be holden at
Reygate in this Countye and shall then & there answere the sayd
offence & abyde the order of the Courte therein and shall in the meane
tyme be of goode behauniour That then this Recognizance to be
vovde &e.

Thexe suertyes did bring backe the said I8 Lye the ix* daye of
ffebr. and desyred to be dyscharged & then I made a mittimus & sent
her to the gaole by the Constable of Caterham for wylfull burning
certaine bedding and other goods of Mr. Best in his house.

ix die ffebr, 1613.

Willelmus Best de Caterham yeoman tenetur domino Regi in xU.

The Condicon that whereas E. Lye is aceused by the said William
Best for the wylfull burning of his bedding & certeyne goods in his
house for which she is comytted to the gaole, vf nowe the said William
Best shall at the nexte generall gaole deliverye to be holden for this
Countye preferr a Byll of Endytement against the said Eliz. Lye for
the said offence & shall give evydence therevppon & pursue the same
according to lawe that then this Recognizance shalbe voyd, other-
wyse &e.

I zent all this to Sir Edm. Bowyer.!

William Terrye of Caterham husbandman Borsholder there sworne
before me the ix™ daye of flebrunarye 1613.  Jo. Dorrant et vxor and
Lliz. Medhurst &e. broughte to wme by my warrant 26° fiebr. ads.
Jo. Jewell for hedgbreaking and the peace. Sed Concord. condit.

Pedazer White was in like manner broughte at his sute & ended
6 Martij.

Marche 1613.

I made a warrant vppon a supplicauit versus Agnetem Skite ads.
Tho. Mathew 7° die. I sent her to the gaole but Tho. Mathew did
there agree with her & release her vt patet per literas,

1 Of Camberwell, Sheriff of Surrey and Sussex, 1601 ; M.P. for
Surrey, 1603 ; knighted at Charterhouse, 11th May, 1603 ; buried at
Camberwell, 1627.
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Aprill 1614.

I sent a warraut for Pedazer White & his wyfe ads, Jo. Jewell
(peace &c.)

Maye 1614.

I rode to Revgate Sessions the 3¢ & 4 Jayes.
. D V

Maye 1614 16*™ daye.

I sent a warrant to Lingfeld versus Jo: Olyner ads. vxoris.

June 1614.
The 10* daye John Onslye & Henrye Warren were broughte before
me by the Constable of Lingfeld & Mr. George Turner and I sent
them to the house of Correetion by the Constable G. Somerton,

August 1614,

The 21" August I sent a warrant to the Constable of Crowhurst
against Jo: Greene ads. Evan Jynkyn for the peace. he was brought.
I gane him tyme to xxvijth,

The 23" T sent a warrant for Tho: Botley ads. Rich. Botley.

24 August. ¢

Thomas Botlye de Oxsted in Com. predict. hushandman tenetnr
domino Regi in x%  Johannes Dodd de Tanridge in Com. prediet.
yeoman et Willelmus Masters? de Oxsted predict. yoman tenentur
vterque in vl

The eondicon of this Recognizance is snch, That yff the within-
bounden Tho: Botlye shall personallye appeare at the nexte generall
Sessions of the peace to be holden at Croydon for this Countye and in
the meane tyme shall kepe the peace of our soueraigne lorde the king
towards Richard Botlye that then &e.

1 Ilis name oeeurs in the Par. Reg. of Oxted. His danghter,
Ursula, was buried at Oxted on 4th Mareh, 1606, and his wife,
Andrey, on 18th Febrnary, 1627. At a Court held for the Manor of
Titsey, 4th April, 1605, William Maister is admitted to a messuage
called Collyers on payment of a fine of £3: 6s. 8d.; and at a Court for
the same Manor, held 26th April, 1622, William Masters of Oxted
and Andrey, his wife, and Elena, their daughter, aged 13, appear as
tenants,
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Memorandum quod ix° die Januarij anno supradict, prefatus Ricardus
Botlye venit coram me Bostoke fluller armigero vno Justic. Iit gratis
remisit et relaxauit quantum in se est predictam sceuritatem paeis per
ipsum coram me versus predietum Thomam Botlye petit.  In euius rei
testimonium signum suum appostit.

I returned bothe this Reeognizanee & the Release in at Croydon
Sesstons to Mr. Awsten.

August.

The 28™ T sent a warrant of the peace to Burstowe versus Jo.
Cooper ads. Rowli : Bromefeld. He was bronghte to Sir Willizun
Gardyner! & he bounde him.

That daye T sent a warrant to Horley versus Richard Knight for
getting his mayde with childe.

October 1614.

20 dic a warraut pro pace versus Jennings de Oxsted ad servitium
Marye Smythe. ended.

20 die warrant versns Pedazer White et vxorem et famulam ad servi-
tium Jewell.

Nov. 1614.

The 4t daye I sent Thomas Dunstane to the house of Correetion
taken at Blechinglye ffayre® drunke & quarrelling & he said le had
noc dwelling & he accused Arthur ffylpott for killing one Richard
Curteys at Groomebridg? ffaire about a yeare since.

I sent the said Arthur ffylpott to the gaole vppon that aceusacon
that daye & tooke a Recognizance of Tho., Dunstane to preferr a byll
of Endytement &e. and to give evydence at the nexte assyses.

He was bayled by Sir Edm. Bowyer & my sclfe & others at the
redd lyon* the . ... of No:

1 Son of Sir Thomas Gardyner, of Camberwell. Died in his father's
life-time ; knighted at the Tower, London, 13th May, 1603,

2 Blechingley Fair is held on 2nd November. The original grant,
dated 1st October, 1283, was to Gilbert de Clare, Earl of Gloueester,
for three days, viz.: on the Iive, Ieast, and Morn of All Saints.

3 Tfairs are now held at Groombridge on 17th May and 25th
September.

* There is still 2 public-house with this sign at Blechingley.
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Dec:

Item the vj*" day we mett at Godstone aboute Rogues &e. I
reecived a letter to Sir Tho. Gresham & my selfe from the Greeneelothe!
against Knight constable of Mestham ad servitium Elsey & Allingham.
I ended the matter the 9% daye Knighte paid Elsey v vj' and was to
paye as muehe to Allingham.

The 10" daye.

William Bersythyo a saylor was broughte before me for stealing
Glovers wyves smocke? which he confessed and she hathe it agayne &
I sent him to the gaole by Rumnye the Borsholder of Godstone & he
suffered him to escape.

The xiiij** daye I went to Oxsted to meete Mr. Wygnall aboute a
eontroversye inter Jewell and Comporte by letters from the Greene-
elothe, the matter was referd to Sir Tho. Gressham to eertyfye,
byeause he had heard it before.

The xx' daye I sent a warrant to Burstowe against John Cowper
ad servitium Bromfeld returnable &e.

The xxj® I sent a warrant to Tanridg for the peace versus Nicholas
Mercer and Robert Jewrye seruants to Tho: Phillip ad servitium John
Staplehurst. Yt was agreed the nexte daye.

Januarye 1614.

The x I rode to Croydon Sessions & I there returned in the Recog-
nizance and release of Botlyes aud tryed Edw: Dorrant for the Indyte-
ment of . . ..

Item the last daye I sent warrant against the ij Greenes and Baker
for suspicon of breaking Sir Tho. Iloskyns gate at Stocketts® they
were with me and denyed yt.

That daye I sent ij warrants for Ashbye of Oxsted and Iarborowe
of Crowhurst for that eause.

! The Board of Green-Clotl, a Court of Justice held in the eomyt-
ing honse of the Iing’s household, composed of the Lord Steward and
officers under him. It took its name from a green eloth spread over
the board where they sat. It is now abolished.

2 A shift.

3 Stoeketts Farm in the lower part of Oxted. It then formed part
of the Barrow Green Iistate, having been purchased by Thomas
Hoskyns, Esq., on 2nd June, 1603.
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tlebr.

Roger Kempe of Crowhurst Constable there sworne before me the
xvijth daye of ffebr. Anuno Diii 1614,

xxvj® die febr.

Ricardus Greene de Oxsted in Com. predict. linsbandman tenetnr
domino Regi in x.  Willelmns Cawsten! de eadem in Com. predict.
generosus tenetur domino Regi in vi

The Condicon of this Recognizanee is suclhie That whereas the
withinbounden Richarde Greene is aceused with others for vulawfull
entering into the gromde of Sir Tho. Hoskyns knighte ealled Stocketts
in the parishe of Oxsted in the said Conutye & for entting asunder
a gale there on Mondaye the xxx' of Jannarse last in the nighte
tyme, yff nowe the said R. G. shall appeare at the nexte generall
Sessions of the peace to be holden at Reygate for this Countye and
shall there aunswere the said aeensacon and abyde the order of the
Courte that then &e.

codem die.

Johammes Greene de Oxsted in Com. predict. husbandman tenetur
domino Regi in x!% Rieardus Greene de eadem tenctur domino Regi
in v,

The Condicon vt supra,

Marche 1614 & 1615,

The xijt* day of Marche William Browne of Oxsted Thomas Reeve
& his wyfe & Johm Jennings were bronght before me by my
warrant dated the viijth daye against them and Jennings wyfe at the
aute of Richard Killicke of Oxsted for pnlling his hedges and stealing
hix woode.

William Browne confessed that hie had dinerse tymes taken & caryed
woode owte of the flarme gromnds of the said Richard Killyeke
within the compasse of this yere last past, & byecause this was the first
tyme of hix conviction I ordered him to for satysfaction to paye him
ij* betwene this & Easter daye nexte.

Tho: Reeves wyfe confessed that she had taken and caryed awaye
some wode owte of the said gronnds of the said Killycke and her
husband acknowledged the same, & being the first convietion I ordered
nim to paye xviij¢ before Easter daye next,

1 William Causten is returned in 1577, and, in a Rental of Oxted,
cire. 1608, as owner of the third part of Stocketts,



SURREY JUSTICE, 207

March 1614 & 1615.

John Jennings acknowledged likewyse that his wyfe had taken and
caryed awaye woode at seuerall tymes owte of the said grounds of the
said Killycke and byecause this was the first eonviction I ordered him
likewyse to paye him xviij¢ before Easter daye nexte his wyfes absence
is excused by reason of her greate bellye.

The xxiij daye I sent a warrant of the peace to Cowlsdon and
generallye against Anthonye Boorde gent. ad servitinm Jenkyn Jones ;
he had a supersedeas owte of the Kings benche,

Maye 1615.

The xxx! I sent a warrant of peace against Charles Pereyvall
Thomas Percyvall and Samson Moone to Rygate ad servitium Wm.
Aynscombe.

The 31%" T sent a warrant against Wm. Aynscombe Wm. Yeldall &
John Symons ad servitium Charles & Thomas Pereyvall & Samson
Moone to Merstham.

The 31t of Maye.

Wm. Aynscombe did release the peace whieh he required against the
said Charles and Tho: Percyvall & Samson Moone before they were
bounde.

31 Maye.

Samson Moone did release the peace likewyse which he required
against Wm. Aynsecombe, Wm. Yeldall & John Simonds, & he & John
Barnes of Nutfeld did assure me that Charles & Tho: Percyvall had
lykewyse agreed with the said partyes, & all this was before they were
bounnde.

June 1615.

The 1, I sent a warrant to Lingfeld against Eliz. wyfe of Richard
Dane & Eliz. wyfe of Pawle Wynchester ad servitium Salomon Cole!
for taking certeyn golde owte of his pockett &e,

! He appears on the Court Rolls of Titsey in 1604-5, as holding
lands in Crowhurst,
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The vt I sent a warrant to Reygate versus Tho. Humfrye & . . . .
his wyfe ads. . . . Sanders alias Wastleyn for suspicon of stealing
sheepe &e.

1 was at Godstone the 19 daye at a meeting for alehouses &
Rogues &e.

T cent a warrant the 25% daye to Nutfeld against Josephe Ship-
wrighte ad servitinm Anth, Wetherbye assaulte &e.

Julye.

I ended the matter the 4% Julye.
The 4 T sent a warrant to Blechinglye versus George Jackson ads.
Wi Tho, his prentyse et ¢ contra. I ended the 4% daye,

July 1615.

I rode to the assises the xith day and returned the 13,

The 26t T sent a warrant to Blechinglyc versus Iatherin Yong &
Eliz. Chowle ad servitium Blakes wyfe & Tho. Cackett pro malum-
pense. [7]

August 1615.

Ttem the 4™ I rode to Croydon to the musters.

Item the 6% T joyned with Mr. Hayward & Mr. Wygnall in a
warrant for a Ryott at Lingfeld ad servitium George Howden.

Item the 9t daye I examined three taken vppon suspicon for robbing
Sir Ed. Bowyer & sent them to him. ‘

Warrant to Oxsted the . ... .. daye against Wm. Cowper,
Reeve and Roberte Chapman ad servitium Masters.

I rode to Lingfeld to a Sessions for a Ryott inter lady DBoroughs !
sernants and George Howden the xj™,

September 1615,

Ttem to Croydon musters the vt daye.

Ttem the vjt® T was at Mr. Evelyns & made a warrant with him &
Mr. Wygnall for a Sessions for a Ryott inter Mylles plaintiff &
Chelshams et alios defendants,

Ttem the xxj® daye I rode to Godstone to that Sessions & there Mr.
Wryenall & T onely mett I gave the charg &e. the Ryott founde. They

1 Catherine, d. of Robert Earl of Lincoln and widow of William Lord
Borongh who died 1594, She lived at Starboro’ Castle and died 1622,



SURREY JUSTICE, 209

submytted to the flynes, we eomytred them ij or iij houres, the 4
Ryotters paid iiiji unde onr dynner xx%, we delivered the whole
Records to the Sheryft to make the Indentures &e. and byeause he had
lost onr precept being robbed the night before.

September 1615.

Item a warrant to Oxsted versnz Wm. Potter, Jo. Blundell . ..
florder & ... Whiting for drunkenes &e,

October 1613.

John Woode constable of Tauridge =worne hefore me for his offyvee
the tfirst of October 1615,

6" October.

I sent a warrant for Richard Myles of Blechinglye the vounger ad
servitimm Rie, flysher of Merstham for assaulting him & riding vppon
him in the higheway the Wenxday sennighte before Barth, daye last,

9° die Octobris.

Ricardns Myles de Blechinglie in Com. prediet. mereer tenetur
domino Regi in xI" et Michaell Hayward de ecadem yoman tenetur
domino Regi in xx" et :

The condicon of this Recognizaunce is snche that whereas Richard
fiysher of Mestham hath acensed the withinbounden Richard Myles
for assaulting him vppon the highewaye & for violentlye riding vppon
him with his horse whereby he is grievouslye hurte in his bodye aboute
a weeke before the ffeast of St. Bartholomew the apostle last past, yft
nowe the said Richard Myles shall appeare at the next generall Sessions
of the peace to be holden at Croydon for this comntye to answere the
=ail offence & abyde the order of the said Conrte concerning the same,
and in the meane tyme shall keepe his majesties peace towards the said
Richard fiysher that then this Recognizance to be voyd.

I tooke the examinacon of the said Richard ffysher that daye,

The tenth of October John Bearde constable of Caterham was
sworne before me.

Thomas Bassett on of the hedborounghes! there was then alzoe sworne
before me.

1 The chief officer of the view of frankpledge,
YOL. IX. 0
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Alex. Miller another hedborowe of that parizhe sworne before me
the xvtt of October.

1 sent a warrant the xvjt* day for Raffe Monke & diverse for playeing
at eards in his house vesterday being the sabaoth dave! & for George
Jackson and others for the like then in his honse —— to Blechingly.

222 die Oetobris,

Ricardus Plawe de Blechinglye in Com. predict. yeoman tenetur
domino Regi in x%  Nicholaus Doggett de eadem yoman tenetur in vi

The condicon of this Reecognizance is suclie That whereas the
withinbounden Riehard Plawe is accnsed for breaking the peace and
abusing the Constable of Blechingly in exeenting his offyee yfi the
said Richard Plawe shall appear at the next generall quarter Sessions
of the peace to he holden for this Conntye at Croydon & shall then &
there answere the said offences and in the meaune tyme keepe the peace
towards our soueraigne lord the king and his liege people that then this
Recognizance to be voyde or else to abyde in his floree and vertue.

The 231 I sent a warrant for the peace against Tho: Woode of
Cousdon ad servitium Alex. Myller pro pace.

Mem. to enquire of the execncon hereof at the Sessions at Croydon.
I zent a warrant that daye againstJohn Hamound & John

they are 2 - 5 — b
Jound Hache ad servitium William Woode for killing his dogg.
hounde on it
thotl I sent a warrant the 27 daye for Samsou Moone of
wther . . ]
» Reveate for getting John Homewood’s daughter with
sude. 0T

childe.

29° Qctobris 1615.

Radulphus Monnke de Blechinglye in Com. predict. husbandman
tenetur domino Regi in x"  Tho: Skynner de eadem husbandman
tenetur domino Regi in vi.

The condicon of this Recognizaunee is suche that yff the above-
bounden Raffe Monnke shall not hereafter vse or suffer any vnlawfnll
playe or games to be vsed at or in his house & shall appear at the
nexte quarter Sessions to be holden at Croydon for this Conntye to
answere his offence for keeping vnlawfull playe & games in his honse
heretofore.!  That then this Reeognizance to be voyde &e.

! There is a presentment on the Court Rolls of Westerham, Kent, 14
Oet. 1624, against Margaret Wane, for getting three boys to remain in
her house playing at painted cards till 12 o’cl. that day being Sunday.
See p. 225,
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29 October 1614,

Thomas Skynner borsholder of the vpland of Blechinglye sworne
before me.

29 QOctober 1615.

Samson Moone de Revgate in Com. predict. Imsbandman tenetnr
domino Regi in xx! et Michaell Moone de Nutfeld husboudman tenetur
domino Regi in xx! marks.

The condicon of this Recognizannce is suche that yff the within-
bonnden Samszon Moone shall personallye appeare at the nexte quarter
Sessions of the peace to bhe holden at Reygate in this Conntye To
answere to suche matters as on his majesties behalfe shalbe then & there
obiected against him and in the meane tyme shalbe of good behauniour
That then this Recognizance shalbe voyde &e.

This is for the acensacon for getting with child . . . . the danghter
of John Homewoode of Nutfeld which she said waz done the vjth dayve
of Augnst last onelye. '

This daye I sett my ! hande to a lyeence for Mr. Copley to travayle
abounte hix busyness for vj mouthes, my lord IHowards hande and Mr
Evelyns being sett thereto before & the vt of Maye 1616 I did againe
gett my hande to another lyeeunce for him, Sir Tho: Gresham Mr.
Evelyn and Mr Haward having sett theirs hefore.

November 1615 1° die.

Johannes Hamond de Chelsham in Com. prediet. husbandman tenetur
domino Regi in x'.  Thomas Dayve de eadem husbandman tenetur
domino Regi in v,

The condiecon of this Reeognizaunee is suehe that yff the within-
named John Hamond shall personallie appeare at the next generall
Sessions of the peace to be holden at Croydon in thix conntye & =hall
answere to snche matters as on his maiesties behalfe shalbe obiected
against him & in the meane tyme be of goode behauionr That then &e.

The case is for killing a dogge of William Woodes which did drawe
dry foote after which tyme he had great losses, & alsoe for kylling
conyes with a stonebowe? in the grounds of . . . . Obberd.

1 See ante, p. 196, Jan. 1612,

2 A cross bow for shooting stones. George Eliott of Limpsficld, by
his will dated 17th Febrnary, 1644, bequeathed to Sir Arthur Mannering
“his hawking bagg aund ¢ stone bowe.””

02



212 NOTE BOOK OF A

Johannes ITuche de Chelsham in Com. prediet. hnsbandmau tenetur
domino Regi in x' et Thomas Daye de eadem husbandman tenetur
domino Regi in vi,

‘The condicon vt supra.

The case for the dogge & being in Wm., Woods grounds with doggs
& hunting his conyes.

Deeember.

I <ent Wm. Potter of Oxsted to the honse of Correction the . . .
of December e went on NXmax daye.

[ was at Croydon Sessions.
I was alsoe at Reveate Sessions.,
P

Maye 1616.

I =ent a warrant for the alehonsekeper that marveld Jefferyes
wydowe & Robert Bowyer to Blechinglye pro pace.

[ sent a warrant the 5" of Maye for Tho. ITumfrye of Revgate ad
servitium Wm. Bridgell his prentyee. T agreed them the xiij*" of
Maye.

I sent a generall warrant against Robert DBest for ffelonye ads.
Nich. Best the xiij®® of Mave and another to Reveate versus
Tho., Wonham and Avys his wyfe for that caunse,

June 1616.

T was at Godstone aboute alchousekeepers the 26" and at Revgate
therefore the 27,

The 28 a peller called Robert Williams was bronghte before me
for suspicon of robbing Anthonye ITeathfeld of Reygate & I made
a warrant to send him to the house of Correction.

That daye I =ent a warrant pro paece versus Thomam Myller de
Burstowe ad =ervitinm Roberte Roffey & the 29 I ended yt.

Julyve 1616.
The 3" 1 rode towards Kingztons axsyses and returned the 5th,
The xith T sent Eliz. Ed=all =eruant to Richard Greene to the house
of Correetion for stryking her dame & threatning her after and for
departing from her seruice.

September 1616.

xvj Sept. Salomon Cole de Crowhurst in Com. predict. yeoman
teuetur domino Regi in vl
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The condicon to appeare at the next gencrall Sessions of the peace
to be holden at Kingston to answere to suche matters as shalbe
obiected against him for not making his accounte &e. e paid the
monye & 1 dyscharged him,

I rode to Kingstone to the Sessions the v . . . daye.

October 1616.

I gaue Richard Wolfe the Constable of Oxsted his Qathe the 9th
daye of October.

The 21" 1 sent a warrant of the peaee against Jo: Bowyer of
Oxzted ad servitinm Thome Haseler.

Xxij Octoh.

Johames Bowyer de Oxsted in Com. predicl. shoemaker tenetur
domino Regi in x5 IHenricus Mngridge de eadem glover ct Ienr.
Odgate de eadem shoemaker vterque in vii, _

The condicon is that ¥ft the withinbounden Jo: Bowyer shall
appeare at the nexte generall guarter Sessions of the peace to be
holden at Croydon for this countye and in the meane tyme shall
kepe the peace of our soueraigne lord the king towards all hiz licge
people & especiallye towards Thomas ITaseler That then this Recog-
nizance &e.

Mew. That the said Tho: Iascler the daye & yearc aboue said
did as muche as in him lyethe release the snertve of the peace which
Le had required against the =aid Jo: Bowyver in my presence.  And
in wytness thereof hathe hereto sett his hande.

the marke of the said
Thomas Ilascler.

October.

The 29™ dave the Constable of Crowhurst Lronghte Tho: Lawe
& Priscilla his wyfe before me for wandring rogues and 1 passed
them to flarrington in Barkeshire where he was borne ax he saythe.

November the flivst.

Johannes Hache de Chelsham in Com. predict. hushandman tenetur
domino Regi in xM, et Johannes Bassett de endem ycoman et Stephanus
Ieathe de ftarlye in Com. predict. yeoman tenentur in vl vterque.

The condicon of this obligacon ix snche That whereas the within-
bounden John Ilache iz aecunsed by Peter Obbarde for entring into
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his grounds & for hunting chascing & killing his conyes & for
threatning words against him against the peace of our soueraigne
lord the king, yff nowe the =aid Johm Hache shall appeare at the
nexte quarter Sessions to be holden at Croydon in the =aid countye
to auswere the said aceusacon & in the meane tyme shall kepe the
peace of our soueraigne lorde the king against the said Peter Obbard
that then thiz Recognizance to be voyd.

codem die.

George Heathe sworne hedborowe of Caterhani.

Nouember 1616. 1° die,

Michaell Mylles de Nutfeld in Com. predict. husbandman tenetur
domino Regi in xx.  Johannes Killycke de Doggetts in parochia de
Burstowe in Com. predict. yeoman et Willebnus Mylles de Burstowe
prediet. husbandman tenentur guilibet in xM.

The condicon of this Recognizaunce is suche That viff the within-
bounden Michaell Mylles shall personallye appeare at the nexte
quarter Sessions to be holden at Croydon for this Countye to answere
to suche matters as on his majesties behalfe shalbe obiected against
him and in the meane tyme shall keepe the peace of our soueraigne
lord the king against Tho: Sparks. That then this Recognizance to
be voyde or elze &e.

17° Novembris.
i wheeler
TLo: Payee de Chelsham in Com. predict. carpenter tenetur domino

Regi in xx'.  Johannes Bassett de eadem yeoman et Johannes Cres-
well de eadem husbandman tenentur vterque in xh,

The condicon is that whereas the withinbounden Tho: Payee is
accused for begetting of Grace Moxle with childe and for dinerse
other misdemeanours and ill hehauiour vff the said Tho: Payce shall
appeare at the nexte quarter Sessions to e holden at Reygate and
shall not departe thence withoute Iyeense of the said Courte of
Sessions and in the meane tyme shalbe of goode behauiour that then
thix Recognizance to be voyde or clse to abyde &e.

19° Nov.
1 sent @ warrant to Blechinglye and Hoorne to serche for goods
stollen from Richard Betts, & they broughte . . . . Toller with
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a goose which he said he stole from Rose Harling, & I charged the
Conxztable to laye him by the heeles all night & to bring him again
next morning.

e brake the stocks and ran away.

I sent a warrant that daye for Richard Allen for getting Mr. 1lol-
mans mayd with childe.

20 Nov.
Ricardus Allen de Godstone husbandman tenetur domino Regi
in xx!,
The condicon to appeare at the next Sessions at Croydon & not
departe withoute licence of the Courte,

28 Nov.

I sent a warrant of the peace to Oxsted against Roberte Chapman
the elder and Roberte Chapman the younger & Eliz, his wyfe ad
servitinm W™ Masters.

Jannarye 1616.

Michaell Mylles de Nutfeld in Com. predict. husbandman tenctur
domino Regi in xxi  Willelmus Mylles de Burstowe in Com. predict.
husbandman et Auntonius Emerye de eadem husbandman tenentur
vterque in xb,

The condicon vt in penultima pagina to appeare at Reygate
Sessions.

Marche 1616 and 1617.

The 18 of Marche I sent a warrant of the peace against Edward
Carye ad servitinm Ellen Burchett.

19 Martij 1616.

Edwardus Carye de Reygate in Com. predict. hatter tenetur domino
Regi in xx'. Erasmus Byshe de eadem gentleman et Ricardus Ward
de eadem weaver tenentur in x' vterque.

The condicon of this Recognizaunee is suehe That whereas the
withinbounden Edwarde Carye is accused for assaulting and heating &
evill intreating Ellen the wyfe of Ifenrye Byrchett being with childe &
for threatening to doe her more mischecfe. Yff nowe the said
Edward Carye shall personallye appeare at the next generall Seszions
of the peace to be holden at Reygate to answere the said offence &
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shall in the meane tyme keepe the peace of our soneraigne lord the king
towards all his liege people and especiallie towards the =aid Ellen that
then &e.

e spurned ! her on Wensdaye the 13% of this Marche.

vj” Sept. 1617,

Johannes Bowyer de Oxszted in Com. predict. shoemaker tenetur
domino Regi in x".  Robertus Chapman de eadem in eodem Comitatiy
smythe et Georgins Rumney de Godstone in Com. predict. milwrighte
tenentur vterque in v,

The condicon of this Recognizance is suche that yfi the within-
bounden John Bowyer doe personallye appeare at the nexte generall
Sexzions of the peace to be holden for this Conntye at Croydon & in
the meane tyme shall well behave himselfe & keepe the peace of our
soneraigne lord the king towards all his liege people that then this
present Recognizance &e.

10 die Octobr. A° Dni 1617.

Willelmuz filynte de Charlewoode in Com. predict. laborer tenetur
domino Regt in xxl. Ienr. Mugridge de Oxsted in Com. predict.
glouer et Ricardus Myles de Blechinglye in Com. predict. mercer
tenentur vterque in x',

The condicon of this Recognizanee is suche That whereas the
withinbounden William fHynte is charged with resizting and assaulting
John Dodd highe Constable of the lower halfe hundred of Tanridg in
exceuting & doeing his offvee & for eomytting other mysdemeanours
and offences the vj daye of October.  Yf nowe the said Wm, fiynte
shall personallye appeare at the nexte generall Sessions of the peace
to be holden at Croydon for this Countye & shall then and there
abyde the order of the Courte concerning the =aid offences & in the
meane tyme be of goode hehauiour that then &e.

The 10% of October I ministred the Othe to Richard Kinge hed-
boroughe of Oxxted.

1 i.(‘., kick,
“And foot e as you ‘spurn’ a stranger eur
Over vour threshhold."—
Shakespeare's Merehant of Tenice.
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Dee. 1617.

Item the 13t daye 1 gave the Othe to Salomon Cole Constable of
Crowhurst.

Apiill 1618,

Mem. the 23% of Aprill 1618 I ministred the QOathe to Richarde
Iyllycke of Oxsted highe Constable of the lower halfe lumdred of
Tanrydge.

I did the like to John Milton petye conztable of flarlye the 25t of
Apr. 1618.

Vitimo Apr. 1618.

Thomas Ellys de Oxsted in Com. predict. husbandman tenetur
domino Regi in x% DMichaell Botlye de Oxxted predict. hutcher et
Llizabeth Cowper de cadem vidua tenentur vterque in vA,

The condicon of this Recognizance ix suche That yff the within-
bounden Thomas Ellys =hall personallye appeare at the nexte generaull |
Sessions of the peace to be holden for thix countye at Kingston vppon
Thames to answere suche matters as shalbe then & there obiected
against him and in the meane tyme shalbe of good behauniour That
then &e.

A common couye stealer with Albanyes sones by his owne confession
a drunkard & accused for stealing ij flerretts from Albanye.!

Maye 1618.  1° die.

Abrabam Alford hronght before me for entting & caryeing awave
certuyne small ashes in wydow Cowpers ground he confessed one and I
judged him to pay ij® to her which he presentlye performed.

Junne 1618.

I <ent o warrant of the peace to Reygate the 17% daye versus
William Lymbden butcher ad servitium Lidia ITooke.

I sent a svarrant of the peace the 18" June to Crowhurst versus
Roberte Woodstocke ad servitium firaney= Moore,

I zent a warant of the peace the 235%™ June to Revgate versus
Georgiwm Lyfe ad servitium Anne Lyfe,

Y In Rental of Oxtel in 1608, Willizm Albanye appears as holding
& dwelling-honse with garden and orchard at the Ryc.



218 NOTE BOOK OF A

270 Jumj.

Gieorgins Lyfe de Reygate in Com. predict. smythe tenctur domino
Regi in xY Ricardus Thorneton de eadem yoman et Johannes Tyrrell
de eadem yoman tenentur in v vterque,

The condicon that yf the withinbonnden George Lyfe shall make
his personall appearance at the next quarter Sessions to Le holden at
Kingston for this conntye & in the meane tyme shall keepe the peace
of our soueraigne lord the kings majestie especiallye towards Anne
Lyfe that then &e.

The 25t June I sent a warrant for diuerse wytnesses to be examined
concerning the murther of William Darye of Reygate against Robert
Cotes, & the 271 I examined 7 persons & the said Cotes, & sent him
to the White Lyon.t

i Julij 1618.

Willelmus Lymbden de Reygate in Com. predict. butcher tenetur

domino Regi in xh.

Samuell Wylde de eadem brewer Johannes Garrett
de eadem brasyer tenentur vterque in vl

The condicon of this Recognizance is, That yf the withinbounden
William Lymbden doe make his personall appearance at the next quar-
ter Sessions to be liolden at Kingston for this eountye & in the meane
tyme shall kepe the peace of our soueraigue- lord the king towards his
majestie & all his liege people & especyally towards Lidia Hooker that
then &e.

August 1618, 1° Die,

Johannes 1Taynes de Godstone in Com. predict. glover et Johannes
IToman de cadem glover tenentur domino Regi in x! vterque.

The eondicon of this Reeognizannce is suche that whereas the within-
bounden John Iaynes is accused for begetting of a bastarde childe
on the bodye of Elizabeth Lye, yft the said John Haynes shall person-
allye appeare at the nexte generall quarter Sessions to be holden at
Croydon in this countye to answere such matters as shalbe there
obiected against him, & shall alsoe abyde suche order concerning the
same as shalbe sett downe by the next two Justyces of the peace to
the plaee where the said childe shalbe horne that then this Recogni-
zanee to be voyde &e.

1 The Sheriffs’ Prison. See page 228.
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28° die Nept. 1618.
Rowlandus Haywarde de Godstone in Com. predict hushondman
c e S oo S g -
tenctur domino Regi in <l (sic) Idius Woode de eadem teuetur

domino Regi in xx!i,

The condicon of this Recognizance is suche that yf the iwithin-
bounden Rowland Haywarde doe mak his personall apparance at the
next generall Sessions of the peace to be holden at Iingston in this
countye to answere to suche matters as on his majesties behalfe shalbe
obieeted against him, and in the meane time shalbe of good behauiour
That then this Recognizance to be voyde &e.

Dee. 26° 1618.

Willelmus Dobson de Etonbrydge in Com. Canciwe, husbandman,
Ricardus Greenc de Oxzted in Com. Surr. husbandman tenentur
domino Regi in x! vterque.

The condicon &e. is suche, That whereas William Greene which is
bounde apprentyce to Thomas Cawston of Oxsted aceordinge to the
lawe in that case made and provided & is nowe retayned by the within-
bounden William Dobson contrarye to the sayde lawe as it is suspected,
vit nowe the sayd William Dobson, Richard Greene and William
Greene shall personallye appere at the next quarter Sessions to be
holden at Croydon and shall abyde the order of the said Courte con-
cerning the premysses That then &e.

Deec. 1618.

The 20% Michaell Cowper bronghte before me for stealing Michaell
Woods mare whom I then sent to the Gaole.

Radulfus Lystuey de Micham in Com. prediet. mealeman tenctur in
xl to give evidence against hini.

Miehaell Woode tenctur similiter.

The 26" Anne Allingham was broughte before me for the same &
other ffelonyes. Willinm Leggatt, Edward Bower & John Greene
bronghte by my warrant the next daye vppon ler aceusacon, & then I
sent them all to the gaole. DMichaell Woode tenetur in x!,

The condicon to prefur endytement against Michaell Cowper & Anne
Allingham for stealing his mare.

26° Ffebr. 1618.
Henr. Constable de Oxsted tenetur in v'i

To prefer a byll of endytement against Anne Allingham, Johu
Greene, Edward Bower & William Leggatt for burglarye.
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Januarye 1618, the 16.
I scut a warrant of the peace against William Roker of Nutfeld at
the sutc of Anthonye Ieathe.
Mem. that the xviij!® daye of this monthe the saide Authonye
Heathe did release the snertye of the peace against the savde William
Roker before me & in wytnes=e thereof hath sctt hereto his hande.

the marke of Anthonye Ieathe.

I zent a warrant alsve of the peace the 161 day against Anthony
Heathe at the sute of William Roker.

Mem. that the xviij* daye of the said monthe the saide William
Roker did release the said suertye of the peace against the said
Anthonye Ileath before me and in wytnesse thercof hathe hereto sett
his hande.

William Roker.

flebr, 1618, 24th,

I sent a warant of the peace against Anthonye Ileath of Nutfeld
& Katherin his wyfe ad servitium William Roker & Ellen his wyfe
by Othe.

D,

I sent a warrant against William Roker & Ellen his wyfe ad
servitium Katherine ITeath vxoris Anth, Ieathe by othe.

26 ftebr.

Willelmus Roker de Nutfeld in com. predict. husbondman tenctur
domino Regi in x'. Ricardus Gawton de eadem gentleman et Johannes
Kyllycke de eadem yoman tenentur in v, vterque. '

The condicon of this Recognizaunce is that yff the withinbonnden
William Roker shall make his personall apparance at the next generall
Sessionx of the peace to be holden at Reyegate & in the meane tyme
shall keepe the peace of onr soueraigne lord the king towards Katherin
Heathe the wyfe of Anthonye ITeathe that is shall neyther doe nor
procure to be done any bodyly harme to her that then this Recog-
nizance &e.

Willelmus Roker tenetur in x%  Johannes Kyllycke de eadem
voman tenetnr in vi,

The eondicon that yfi Eilen Roker the wyfe of the withinbounden
Wryllyam Roker shall personally appeare at the next gnarter Seszions
of the peace to be holden at Revgate in this countye & in the incane
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tyme shall kecpa the peace of our soueraigne lord the king towards
Katheryn Heathe the wyfe of Anthonye ITeathe that is shall neyther
doz nor procure to be done auy bodyly harme to the said Katheryn
that then &e.

codem dice.,

Anthonins ITeathe de Nutfeld in Com. prediet. husbandman tenetur
domino Regi in xY Ienrye ITomewoode de eadem hnsbandman et
Ldius Estland de eadem hmsbandman tenentur in vl veerque.

The condiecon.  That yft the withinbounden Anthonyve Heath
shall personally appeare at the next quarter Sessions to be holden at
Reygate in the said conntye & in the meance tyme shall kepe the peace
of our soneraigne lorde the king towards William Roker that ix shall
nevther doe nor proeure any bodylye harme to be doue to the said
William Roker. That then &e.

Anthonins Heathe tenetnr vt supra  Ilenry Homewood vt supra.

The eondicon. That yiff Katheryn Heathe wyfe of the within-
bounden Anthony Heathe shall personally appeare vt snpra & keepe
the peaee vt snpra and against Ellen his wyfe, that then &e.

Ayprill 16° 1619.
I sent a warrant of the peace against Richard Crips of Crowhnrst
ad servitinm Salomon Cole & William Cole.

17° Apr. 1619,

tieardns Crips de Crowhurst in Com. predict. hushandman tenetur
domino Regi in x. Ricardus Cholmlye! in eom. predict. gentleman et
Johannes Cooke de eadem Imshandman tenentur in v vtergue.

The eondicon of this Recognizaunce is suche that yf the within-
bounden Richard Crips shall personallye appeare at the next generall
Sexxions of the peace to be holden at Kingston & in the meane tyme
shall keepe the peaee of ounr soueraigne lorde the king towards
Salomon Cole his sonne That then &e.

15° die Maij proximo sequente.

Salomon Cole de Crowhurst in com. prediet. venit eoram me die et
anno snpradicto et gnantum in se est remisit et relaxavit prefuto
Ricardo Crips seeuritatem pacis quam versus eum petierat et in einsdem
rei testimoninm apposnit manum, Sallaman Cole,

1 Of Kentwayns in Blechingley.
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17° Apr.
I sent a warrant of the peace against Salomon Cole and . . . .
his wyfe ad servitium Rie. Crips,

15° Maij Ricardus Crips de Crowhurst in Com. prediet. venit coram
me et quantum in se est remisit et relaxavit predieto Salomoni Cole et
. . . . vxori ecins securitatem pacis quam versus eos petierat & in

cinsdem rel testimoninm apposuit manum suam.
the marke of

Richard Crips.

18° Apr. 1619.

I sent James Rogers to the gaole for snspicon of robbing George
Jacksons house & examined him.

220 Apr. Georgins Jackson de Blechinglye in com. prediet. In-
lLolder tenetur domino Regi in xU,

The condyeon to preferr a byll of endytement and gine evydence
against James Rogers for Burglarye for breaking his house & stealing
certeyne goods &e.

18° Apr.

I sent a warrant against Jo: Homewood, Thomas Laker and John

Croocher ad servitium ffr. Best pro pace et suspitione Riot 17° Apr.

229 Apr. ;

Johannes Holmewoode de Revgate in Com. predict, yeoman tenetur
domino Regi in xx!: Wm. Haywarde de eadem ycoman et Henr. Ladd
de eadem husbandman tenentur in x! vterque.

The condicon that yff the withinbounden John Homewoode shall
personallye appeare at the next Sessions of the peace to be holden at
Kingston in this countye and in the meane tyme shall kepe the peace
of our soneraigne lorde the king towards firaneys Best that then this
Recognizanee &e.

Tho: Laker de Reigate in com. predict. husbandman tenetur domino
Regi in xx! Johannes Homewoode de eadem yoman et Wm. Hay-
warde de eadem yoman tenentur in xM vterque.

The condicon vt supra.

20 Maye 1619.
T cent a warrant of the peaee against Alex. Miller of Caterham ad
servitium George Ileath constable there.
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eodem die.

I sent a warrant of the peace against . . . Blake of Blechinglye
butcher ad servitinm Thome Brooke.

Mem. that the 14" daye of June anno 1619 the above said George
Heathe did in my presenee as muche as in him lyethe release the
securytye of the peace which he. prayed against Alex. Myller and in
testymonye hereof hathe hereto sett his hand.

the marke of George Heathe.

14 Junij 1619.

Willelmus Comyns de Caterham in Com. predict. weauer tenetur
domino Regi in xU Thomas Stoncham de eadem husbandman et
Ricardus Tye de Chaldon collyer tenentur vterque in vE

The condicon of this Recognizance vs that yf the withinbounden
William Comyns shall personallye appere at the next generall Sessions
of the peace to be holden at Kingston in this countye & in the meane
tyme shall keepe the peace of our soneraigne lorde the king towards
George Heathe and in the meane tyme be of good behauiour that then
this Recognizance to be voyde &e.

Mem. that the . . . daye of . . . the said George IHeathe did before
me release the said suretye of the peace which he required against the
gaid William Comyns.

the marke of Geeorge Heathe.

21 Julij Johannes Croocher de Reygate in Com. prediet. husband-
1619. man tenctur domino Regi in xx% Riecardus Dallender de
Leighe in Com. predict. gentleman et Johannes Holmewoode

de Reygate in Com. predict. yoman in x% vterque.

The condicon of this Recognizance is suche that yff the within-
bounden John Croocher shall personallye appere at the nexte guarter
Sessions of the peace to be holden at Kingston for this countye and
shall answere all suche matters as on his maiesties behalfe shalbe then
& there obiected against him, and shall in the meane tyme kepe the
peace of our soucraigne lorde the king towards all his liege people and
espeeiallye towards firancys Best of Reygate That then &ec.

21 Julij 1619,

Willelmns Harding de Reygate in Com. predict. husbandman tenctur
domino Regi in x#i, Ricardus Dallender de Leighe in Com. predict,
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gentleman et Johnnnes ITomewoode de Revgate in Com. predict.
yoman tenentur vterque in vl

The condicon of this Recoguizance is suche that yffthe within-
bounden William IHarding <hall personallye appere at the next generall
Sessions of the peace to be holden at Kingston for this countye & shall
there answere to all suche matters as on his maiesties behalfe shalbe
obiected against him and in the meane tyme shall kepe the peace of our
soueraigue lorde the king towards his maiestie and all his liege people
& especiallye towards Richard Killycke that then &e.

codem die.

Thomax Best de Reygate in Com. predict. warryner tenetur domino
Regi in x'.  Ricardus Kyllyeke de eadem et ... .. ... tenentur in v
vtergue.

The condicon for Tho. Best vt supra and to keepe the peace towards
his majestie and all hix lege people and especyallye towards John
Holmewoode of Reygate.

2 die Aungusti 1619.

Arthurus Ingrame de Blechingleigh in Com. prediet. husbandman
tenetnr domino Regi in x'  Rieardns Kemp=all de eadem yoman et
Galfriduzs Chilman de Godstone in Com. predict. Innholder tenentur
vterque domino Regi in i,

The condicon of thix Recognizance ix that yft the withinbonuden
Arthnr Ingrame =hall personally appere at the nexte gencrall Sessions
of the peace to be holden at Kingston for this conntyeand in the meane
tyme shall keepe the peace of our soueraigne lorde the king towards bis
majestie and all hisx liege people & especiallye towards Thomas Blake
that then this Recognizance to be voyde &e. '

32 Oct. 1619.

I- ministred the othe to ... Stacye hedborowe of the borrow of
Holmewood in Oxsted. Eodem die T did the lyke to John Eaxt for the
boronghe of Brodeham ibidem.

xij® die Oet. anno 1619.

Willelmns Levett de Oxsted in Com. prediet. hushandman tenetur in
xxl.,  Willetmus Morse de Tanrydge voman et Tho: Perver de
eadem hnsbandman in x! vterque.

The condicon that Levett appeare at the next Sessions at Crovdon
and in the meane tyme be of goode behauiour.
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19 Oct. 1619.
Robertus Arngold de Blechingly Sawyer tenetur in x4, To appere at
next Sessions at Croydon and to kepe the peace towards Wm. Levett.

24° Oct. 1619.

Radulfus Monnke de Blechinglye in Com. predict. husbandman
tenetur domino Regi in vIi,

The coudicon that he shall not hereafter kepe any vulawfull game in
his house nor shall suffer any cards, dyce or other vnlawfull game to be
vsed in his house.!

1 Nov. 1619.

William Comyns sworne hedboroughe of Caterham.

10 die No: 1619.
Michaell Smythe de Blechinglye tenctnr domino Regi in vi,
The condicon that he shall not resorte to any house of vnlawfull
games nor shall hereafter vse or playe at any vulawfull games.!

vij° die fiebr. Anno Dii 1619.

Jacobus Charlewoode de Crowhurst in Com. predict. hushandman
tenetnr domino Regi in x]%: Edwardus Plawe de eadem husbandman ct
Robertus Woodstoek de eadem husbandman tenentur vterque similiter
in xxf,

The condicon of this Recognizance is snche that yff the within-
bounden James Charlewoode shall personallye appeare at the nexte
generall gaole delinerve to be holden in the said countye & shall theu
and there answere to snche matters as on his majesties behalfe shalbe
obiceted against him & shall in the meane tyme keepe the peace of our
soucraigne lorde the king and all his liege people & especiallie towards
William Welshman seruant to John Evelyn Esq™ and alsoe shall in the
meance tyme be of good behaniour  That then this Recognizance to be
voyde and of noune effect or else to remaine in hix full strengthe &
vertue,

April 4° 1620.

Johanues Lambe de Chevington in parochia de Dlechinglye tenetur
domino Regi in vi.

The condicon to appeare at the next quarter Sessions to be holden at
Revgate te answere to such matters &e. it is for putting away his
mayde seruant without warning the danghter of Warren.

1 See p. 210.
VOL. IX. P
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19° Aprili= 1620.

William Rapkin of Caterham did thiz daye release the suretye of the
peace before me which he had before eraned against John Woodden of
Caterham,

xxvij” die Maij Anno Diit 1620,

Willelmuz Cawsten de Oxsted in Com. predict. gentleman tenetur
domino Regi in x'.

The condicon.  That vf he shall personallye appearc at the nexte
generall gaole deliverye to be holden in thix countye & shall then &
there preferr ane byll of Indytement against Thomas Pereyvall for the
felonious stealing of an oxe from him & shall gine evydence as well to
the greate enquest as to the Jurye which shall passe vppon the Iyfe &
deathe of the said Tho: Pereyvall for the same, That then &e.

Willehmuz Iorden de Edenbridge in parochin de Westram in com.
Kancire veoman tenetnr domino Regi in x',

The eondicon vt supra for iiij°r Rents at the same tyme.

One Childe of Kentstreate Constable that tooke them.

v die Juuij Aunno 1620.

Willelmus Marden de Blechingleighe in com. predict. husbandman
tenetnr domino Regi in xl. Willelmus Stacye de eadem husbandman
et Abraham Redhead de cadem husbandman tenentur vterque in vi.

The condicon.  That vfthe abouebounden William Marden shall
make his personall appearance at the next generali Sessions of the
peace to be holden at Kingston in the said countye, and in the meane
tyme =hall keepe the peace of our soueraigne lord the king towards
Richard Pryce That then &e.

Richarde Pryee did heerc remise & release hiz peace to William
Marden the xxiiij® daye of September nexte followinge before me
Bostok ffuller.

the marke of Richarde Pryce.

July 1621.

Sdmundus Golding de Godstone in com. predict. vyntener tenetur
domino Regi in x!.  Johannes Avlarde de Blechinglye in com. predict.
Taylor et Willelmus fiylmer de Godstone predict. husbandman tenentur
domino Regi in vl vterque.

The condicon that Golding appeare at the next Sessions at King-
stone to answere &e. The cause he is aceused for getting a bastard
child vppon . . . .



SURREY JUSTICE, 227

Aprill 1622,

Johannes Dodd de Chaldon in com. prediet. husbandman tenetur
domine Regi in x!, et Gabricl Aynscombe de eadem yoman et Willelmus
Isted de eadem yoman tenentur domino Regi in vY vterque.

The condieon of this Recognizance is That yf the abonebounden
John Dodd doe personallye appeare at the next generall Sessious of
the peace to be holden at Kingston in the sayde countye and in the
meane tyme shall keepe the peacc of our soneraigne lorde the king
espeeyallye towards Richarde Owys, That then this Recognyzance to
be voyde & of none effeet or else to remayne in his full strengthe &
vertue.

xxix? die Junij Anno supradicto.

Mem. That the daye & yeare abouesayde the sayde Richarde Owys
did personallye come before me Bostok ffuller esq™. one of his mujesties
Justyees of the peace of the sayde eountye, and did as muche as in
him lyethe remyse and releasc vnto the sayde John Dodd the snertye
of the peace whieh he had before requyred against him.

the marke of
Richard Owys.

Aprill 1622.

Ricardus Owys de Chaldon in eom. prediet. husbandman tenetur
domino Regi in x". Gabriel Aynscombe de eadem yoman et Johannes
Wyckham de Merstham in com. prediet. mason tenentnr domino Regi
in vl vterque.

The eondicon of this Recognizanee is That yf the abouebounden
Richard Owys doe personallye appeare at the nexte generall Sessions
of the peace to be holden at Kingston for this eountye and in the meane
tyme shall kepe the peace of onr seueraigne lorde the king espeeyallye
towards John Dodd That then thiz Reeognizance to be voyde Or else to
abyde in his strengthe & vertne.

xxix® die Junij Auno dni 1622,

Mem. the daye & yeare abouesayd John Dodd did personallye come
before me & did asx muele ag in him lyethe rvemyse & releasze to
Richarde Owys the suertye of the peace which he had before requyred
against him & hathe herevuto sett hisx hande.

Johu Dod,
r2
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[Commencing the other end of the Volume.]

The boke for the Collectyon of the rates of the taxatyon of ech
Tuhabytant & ocenpyer in Tanrydge after the rate 14 ob. for ech acre
towards & for the relefe of the maymed soldyvars after the rate of ij¢ a
weke.

And for the hospytalls in Surrey & for the kyngsbench & Marshalzeye
afrer the lyke rate of 24 a weke.

And for all Carryages of Removes of her maicstys honsehold.

And for Coles to her maiesties how=cz and for all other Carrvages
for her maiestie owt of Tanrydg.

And for Composytyon of her maiestves provysyon for her most
Lonorable howseholde.

And for otes &e. for her maiestes stable.

And for stoek to setr the poor on worck.

And for the relefe of the poore.

Item the Collectyon for the Shyryves pryson ealled

the White Iyon ys quarterly - - - i
Item for the maymed soldyars quarterly - - gl
Item for the hospytalls Kingsbeneh & Marshalsey
guarterly - - - - - ijij
300 William Phillip for Tyllingdowne - 350 aeres.
Ryechard Greene for Collyn Ryddens - 8 aeres.
Henr. firvthe  Riehard Greene for pareell of Mardeyne
30 lyinge in Tanryvdge - - 30 aeres,
Ryehard Howman for pareell of floore
30 Ivinge in Tanrydge - - 306 acres.
160 Rychard Haywarid for Rooks nest - 160 acres.
8 Edward Howman for downe land - X acres.
20 Henrye Kynge for poarcell of the
Pryorve landes - - - 20 acres.
20 Thomas Allen for pareell of the Pryory
landes - o - - 20 acres.
Mr. Robt. Evelyn!  Robart Shawerofte for parcell of Ley
50 place being in Tanrydge - - 53 aeres,
30 Ryechard Hayward for parcell of Hall
farme being in Tanrydg - - 30 acres.

1 Of Godstone. Third =on of George Evelyn, of Long Ditton,
Emigrated to Virginia, 1610 ; died, 1639,
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Nicholas Glover ’ .

John Wood - = o
Mr. Bostocke!? c - -
John Lambe & John Wodd for Tan-

rydge Cort grownd - s .
John Lamb for Moses land - -
William Kynge for his land - -
Paul Poeknell - - .

Willam Heath for parcell of Tanridge

Court - - - .
Willam Heath for 3 pareells of his
owne land - - -

John Dod for a meadowe heinge pareell
of Tanrydg Court - - -
Henry Hayward gen. - -
Humphrye Wood - - -
Willam Brocker - - -
Widowe Heath - - =
Witlam Chattfeild - - -
Jeames Dod - - - -

Michell Mose o - .

John Dod - 3 2 -
Mr. Gardyner - 2 3
John Grame - - - -
Willam Broeker - - i
Olyver Lander for Hory medow -

Mr. ffoster for Muckhurst - =
Item for Philps med of Causten & Wells
John Lane - = - .

John Pocknell - - .

George Mansfeld

Mr. Wignelle for Shawes & hoge of
horne lyving in Tanridg® - -

I Ownuer of Tandridge Court.
> He appears on the Court Rolls of Titsey Manor in 1607 and 1608.
# Called in a Rental of the Manor of Tandridge, 1670, 1Todge a Horne.
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J aeres,

10 acres.
2506 aeres.

21 acres.
2135 acres.
20 acres.
3 aeres.

120 acres.
10 aeres.

10 aeres.
260 aeres.
12 acres.
50 acres.
S aeres.

8 acres.
15 aeres.
30 aeres.

55 aeres.
36 acres.
26 acres.
26 aceres.
12 aeres.

4 acres.
6 acres,
8 acres.

1

270 acres.
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Gype for Hoge of Horne - - 8acres.
The landes of Sr, Thomas Sandes in

the oecupacion of Idgington - 20 aeres.
Edwarde Plawe for Mr. Gages land - 8 acres,
Bradly for Chapmans Crofte - - Baeres.
Mr. Wignell for Heath ffeald - - T aeres.
Nieholas Vnderell Copers more - 28 aeres.
George Turner  Jokn Diggons land - - - 28 aeres.
Thomas Vnderhill Rychard Juville for Willgosse land - 16 aeres,
John Knolden  /Fillam Ellvine - - - 10 aeres.
Ewhurst John Diggon for Blundells land - 12 acres,
John Plawe of Snowts - - 20 acres.

Dangell Diggon Thomas Dakat ?or 'pa’r‘eell‘ of John B
Plaws land Iying in Tanridge - 50 aeres,
Abraham Godstone - - - 20 acres.
Mr. Thorpe - - - 20 aeres,
John Plawe of Tmcre~ - - 4 aeres,
_ Mr. Wignell for Sandes Crofte - 6 acres.

520

Geffryve Myles  Willam Darbye for his land - - 20 aeres.
Burlye for his land - - - 10 acres.
Edgingtones widowe - - - 10 acres.
John Winehester for his land - - 10 acres.
Ryehbell - - - - 13 aeres.
Erassmus Lander - - - 90 acres.
Ollifer Lander - - - 14 aeres.
John Dod - - - - 60 acres,
+John Dod for Lagham - - 10 aeres.
Popes Mead - - = - iij aeres.
Lusted Sollomon Colle - - - 6 aeres.
Jeames Dodde for Drewsharne - 10 acres.
John Dodd Thomas Humfryve for Newlands - 40 acres.

Rated & allowed by vs | Wylim Heth.

Ryehard Bostok,
John Land. Michel Mose.

Willame Kinge.
John Dodd.

Harry Kyuge.

Thomas Allen,
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Mem. Sherlve for Clapgroue eont. 5 acr.
Mr. Engler for a parcell of land late Mr. Holtons cout. j. acr.
Mr. Hodles for parcell of Skuttle

286 Robt. Evelyn

Summa 958
627
520
286

after j4 an acre
912574,

1t ys agreed by vs Justyees of peaee whose names are vnderwrytten
by the consent of the inhabitants whose names are lykewyse herbefore
wrytten that we do ratyfy and a2llowe the statement of number of acres
aforsayed in each parsons occupyeinge after the rate of j? an acre for
the defrayeing & disehargyng of the charges fyrst mentyoned in the
begynnyng of this book/ And when this collecyon ys near defrayed
and payed for the gayed vses wythin xx® then one newe colleetyon
after the lyk rate of j% an acre to be made and so to contynew for the
vse of her maiestys servyee as aforsayd And that the Constable of
the parryshe for the tyme beynge shall eolleet or canse to be collected
the sayed soms from tyvme to tyme and make an acecompt thereof to the
overseers of the paryshe for the tyme beyng alwayes when the mouey
vs expyred wythin xx5.  And yf the Constable do travel to the Corte
or to-make provysyon for earyage he shalbe allowed xij? for ech day so
bestowed In wytenesse wherof we have hernnto sett onr hands the
27 daye of March 1600 & Anno 42 of our soveraygue lady Llyzabeth
Quene of England &e.

Rychard Bostok.!
Will: Gaynsford.

! Rd. Bostock was the possessor of Tandridge Court and unele of
Mr. Bostock Fuller, whose notes these are. His will was dated 17th
April, 1605, and proved 4th April, 1606. See Preface.



232 NOTE BOOK OY A SURREY JUSTICL.

Wyliam Heth payd to Michacll Mose the 25 of |

. oo 16° 3y
Marche 1599 for his taxatyon - - - f y \q
Item' \\. vilizm I\yuge‘fur his taxatyon payed to | oo o 18
Wylliam Ieth for his parte - - - J
z Item Thomas Alen then payed to Wm. Ileth - OO NG
Item Harry Kyng payed to hym - - - OONNETIG)

Mem. these 3 last soms William Heth payed to John
Lund to dyscharg one lode of cules layed vppon
them & John Land & Broker.

19 Maij 1600,

Mem. yt y= agreed by v= Justyees that all the persons before wrytten
that liane in ther oceupyeng but x acre> and vnder shall paye the sayed
rates for the =ayed charges but one tyme every vear. Aund they that
hav aboue x acres and vnder xxx aeres in ther occupyeng shall pay
vearly the suyved rates ij tymes yearly vi the charg do ryse to so much.
Aud yf the charges aforsayed do ryse to more in any year then they
that have aboue 30 acres in ther occupyeing shall paye and bear all the
rest of the echarges for that year and so yearlye to folow the lyke rate.
Provyded allwayes that our intent and meanyng yvs that those that be
owners and men of abylyvtye and have lytell oeenpyeng shall be charged
accordyng to ther abylyte by the Justyees dyscretyon towards the
relefe of the poor notwythstandyng the sayed rates aforsayed.

Rychard Bostok. Thomas Gresham.
John Iingler.

Will: Gayunsford.




